UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

ADB004208

LIMITATION CHANGES

TO:

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

FROM:

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies only; Test and Evaluation; MAR 1975. Other requests shall be referred to Headquarters, Edgewood Arsenal, Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD 21010.

AUTHORITY

EA D/A ltr, 10 Mar 1978

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

604 20 2004200 12 01010384 3 07

froupe

AD			
	 	 _	_

EDGEWOOD ARSENAL CONTRACTOR REPORT

EM-CR-74051

TECHNICAL LIBRARY

(EA-4D01)

EVALUATION OF TEST METHODS FOR PYROTECHNIC HAZARD CLASSIFICATION

by

Wayne R. Wilcox

March 1975

NASA NATIONAL SPACE TECHNOLOGY LABORATORIES General Electric Company Engineering and Science Services Laboratory Bay Saint Louis, Mississippi 39520

Contract No. NAS8-27750

DTIC QUALITY INSPECTED 3



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

Headquarters, Edgewood Arsenal Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21010

Distribution limited to US Government agencies only because of test and evaluation; March 1975. Other requests for this document must be referred to Commander, Edgewood Arsenal, Attn: SAREA-TS-R, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21010.

Disclaimer

The findings in this report are not to be construed as an official Department of the Army position, unless so designated by other authorized documents.

Disposition

Destroy this report when it is no longer needed. Do not return it to the originator.

1 DEDART NUMBER	REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE										
I. REFORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSION NO.	3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER									
EM-CR-74051											
4. TITLE (and Subtitie)		5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED									
EVALUATION OF TEST METHO	DS FOR	Technical Report									
DVDOTECHNIC HAZADD CLASS	SIFICATION	September 1973-September 19'									
PIROIECHNIC HAZARD CLASS	6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER										
7. AUTHOR(a)		8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(#)									
		NA 58-27750									
Wayne R. Wilcox		MIDE BA030									
		MIFR DI030									
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND A	DDRESS	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK									
NASA National Space Technology	Laboratories	DEMA 1029									
Engineering and Science Service	s Laboratory	PEMA 4332									
Bay St. Louis, Mississippi 395	20	Project 5744099									
1. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRES	55	12. REPORT DATE									
Commander, Edgewood Arsenal		March 1975									
Attn: SAREA-TS-R		13. NUMBER OF PAGES									
Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD	21010	103									
Commander, Edgewood Arsenal	different from Controlling Office)	15. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)									
Attn: SAREA-MT-TS		UNCLASSIFIED									
Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD	21010	154 DECLASSIEICATION/DOWNCRADING									
(CPO Mr. W. P. Henderson, 67	(1-2301)	SCHEDULE									
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)		NA									
17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebstrect	entered in Block 20, if different from	m Report)									
 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 	entered in Block 20, if different from	m Report)									
 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessing) Pyrotechnic Transportation 	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Toothor	Environment									
7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing	Environment Parameter									
7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage	entered in Block 20, if different from entered in Block 20, if different from entered in Block 20, if different from transformation sensitivity Initiation sensitivity	Environment Parameter Instrumentation									
7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity	Environment Parameter Instrumentation									
7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if neces Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage 9. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eide if neces	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity	Environment Parameter Instrumentation									
 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eide if nece The hazard classification 	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2	Environment Parameter Instrumentation									
 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necessify the second state of the second sec	entered in Block 20, it different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as	Environment Parameter Instrumentation									
 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if neces Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if neces The hazard classification j pyrotechnics. Forty-six test ma applied methods. The proposed 	entered in Block 20, 11 different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as fest methods were subj	Environment Parameter Instrumentation are improperly applied to s replacements for the currentl ected to engineering review and									
 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if neces Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse eide if neces The hazard classification pyrotechnics. Forty-six test mapplied methods. The proposed analysis including the testing of 	entered in Block 20, 11 different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as test methods were subj two materials by size me	Environment Parameter Instrumentation are improperly applied to s replacements for the currentl ected to engineering review and ethods. Fifteen test methods									
 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if neces Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if neces The hazard classification y pyrotechnics. Forty-six test may applied methods. The proposed analysis including the testing of 	entered in Block 20, if different from entered in Block 20, if different from entered in Block 20, if different from entered in Block 20, if different from Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity entered identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as test methods were subj two materials by six methods	Environment Parameter Instrumentation are improperly applied to s replacements for the currentl ected to engineering review and ethods. Fifteen test methods									
 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage 9. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde if nece The hazard classification pyrotechnics. Forty-six test mapplied methods. The proposed analysis including the testing of were recommended for inclusion 	entered in Block 20, if different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as test methods were subj two materials by six me in a pyrotechnics supp	Environment Parameter Instrumentation are improperly applied to s replacements for the currentl ected to engineering review and ethods. Fifteen test methods lement to TB 700-2.									
 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetract 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde if nece Pyrotechnic Transportation Storage 9. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde if nece The hazard classification pyrotechnics. Forty-six test ma applied methods. The proposed analysis including the testing of were recommended for inclusion 	entered in Block 20, it different from every and identify by block number) Hazard classification Testing Initiation sensitivity every and identify by block number) procedures of TB 700-2 ethods were proposed as test methods were subj two materials by six me in a pyrotechnics supp	Environment Parameter Instrumentation are improperly applied to s replacements for the currentl ected to engineering review and ethods. Fifteen test methods lement to TB 700-2.									

UNCLASSIFIED SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE (Them Date Entered)

PREFACE

The work described in this report was authorized under US Army MIPR B4030 and TWR EA-4D01. It was performed at the NASA National Space Technology Laboratories (NSTL) for the Edgewood Arsenal Resident Laboratory (EARL) and NASA-NSTL by the General Electric Company under Contract No. NAS8-27750. This work was initiated on 24 September 1973 and completed in August 1974.

Reproduction of this document in whole or in part is prohibited except with permission of the Commander, Edgewood Arsenal, Attn: SAREA-TS-R, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland 21010; however, DDC is authorized to reproduce the document for United States Government purposes.

The use of trade names in this report does not constitute an official endorsement or approval of the use of such commercial hardware or software. This report may not be cited for purposes of advertisement.

The information in this document has not been cleared for release to the general public.

Acknowledgement

The author wishes to acknowledge the technical assistance and guidance of Messrs. W. P. Henderson, the Hazardous Material Engineering Office Project Engineer and A. H. Lasseigne and F. L. McIntyre of NSTL/ESSL in the performance of this program.

Summary

This study covers the engineering reviews and analyses of 46 testing methods proposed for determining the hazard classification of pyrotechnic bulk materials and munition end items during transportation and storage.

Six test methods were applied to Green Smoke IV and Violet Smoke IV to demonstrate the validity of the tests.

The 15 most definitive bulk and end item test procedures are recommended for inclusion in a supplement to TB 700-2 for pyrotechnics. The recommended test procedures are intended to replace the explosives related tests that are now being improperly applied to pyrotechnics in TB 700-2.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Paragraph		Page
1.0	INTRODUCTION	5
1.1	Objective	5
1.2	Authority	5
1.3	Background	5
2.0	TECHNICAL APPROACH	5
2.1	Test Review and Evaluation	5
2.1.1	Candidate Test Method Sources	7
2.1.2	Ranking Criteria and Methods	7
2.2	Tests Performed	9
2.2.1	Differential Thermal Analysis	9
2.2.2	Parr Bomb Calorimeter	9
2.2.3	Hygroscopicity	9
2.2.4	Moisture (Desiccation Method)	9
2.2.5	Isothermal Analysis (Multipount DTA)	9
3.0	RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	9
3.1	Tests Performed	9
3.1.1	Differential Thermal Analysis	9
3.1.2	Parr Bomb Calorimeter	11
3.1.3	Hygroscopicity	11
3.1.4	Moisture (Desiccation Method)	11
3.1.5	Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method)	11
3.1.6	Isothermal Analysis	12
3.2	Tests Evaluated	12
3.3	Discussion	12
3.3.1	Initiation Sensitivity	12
3.3.2	Output Energy Release	19
3.3.3	End Item Testing	20
3.3.4	Thermal Output	21

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D)

Paragraph Page 4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 21 4.1 Specific Test Methods 214.1.1 **Recommended Tests for Inclusion** 21 4.1.2 Exclusions 22 4.1.3 Tests Recommended for Further Development 23 4.2 Other Recommendations 23 SELECTED REFERENCES 24 APPENDIX A - CLASSIFICATION METHOD SUMMARY SHEETS 25APPENDIX B - TEST METHODS FOR PYROTECHNIC MATERIALS HAZARDS EVALUATION 73 DISTRIBUTION LIST 162

EVALUATION OF TEST METHODS FOR PYROTECHNIC HAZARD CLASSIFICATION

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 <u>Objective</u>. The objective of this study was to provide engineering evaluations and analyses of test methods to be utilized for the classification of pyrotechnic bulk materials and munition end items. This study is intended to contribute toward the preparation of pyrotechnics hazard classification procedures that will be integrated into documentation for use by the Department of Defense, the Department of Transportation, and the North Atlantic Treaty Organization.

1.2 <u>Authority</u>. The work described in this report was authorized by National Space Technology Laboratories Technical Work Request (TWR) EA-4D01, dated 24 September 1973.

1.3 <u>Background</u>. The Explosives Hazard Classification Procedures, US Army Technical Bulletin 700-2, Change 1, 1968, sets forth testing procedures for determining the reactions of explosives, solid propellants, pyrotechnics, and end items to initiating influences such as heat, mechanical impact, hydrodynamic shock, and open flame.

The Bulletin provides for hazard classification of bulk materials on the strength of the above testing as shown in figure 1. The classification thus obtained applies only to transportation and storage and does not apply to the various stages of manufacturing and assembly.

The classification procedures that now appear in TB 700-2 consist of test methods that produce only "go" or "no go" results. The tests and their interpretation were devised specifically for mass detonating materials. They do not adequately provide for the true hazard classification of pyrotechnics (see paragraph 3.3). TB 700-2 is nevertheless applied to the classification of pyrotechnics.

This program was conducted to assemble, evaluate, and recommended hazard classification test procedures intended specifically for pyrotechnics to be included in a revised edition of TB 700-2.

2.0 TECHNICAL APPROACH

2.1 Test Review and Evaluation. Each candidate test method was:

- Reviewed and evaluated to determine its applicability to pyrotechnic hazards classification.
- Classified according to its nature and the physical parameters involved.
- Ranked on the bases of relatability, quantification, scalability, and cost.



In the second second



Two materials, Green Smoke Mix IV and Violet Smoke Mix IV were selected as reference materials with which to demonstrate the suitability of the candidate test methods. They were selected because of the large amount of available test data.

2.1.1 Candidate Test Method Sources. The candidate test methods required to be reviewed and evaluated were obtained from the following:

- Test Methods for Pyrotechnic Materials Hazards Evaluation, A. Levine and D. Kone (appendix B)
- TB 700-2, Explosive Hazard Classification Procedures (including Change, 1, 1968)
- PEMA 4932, Project 5744099, Exhibit P-16, Paragraph 1a.

Additional candidate test methods were selected from the hazards evaluation experience at the National Space Technology Laboratories.

The candidate test methods are listed in table 1 on pages 11 and 12.

2.1.2 Ranking Criteria and Methods. For expediency, the relevant factors and characteristics were extracted from each test method for independent evaluation.

Each parameter was analyzed to determine the extent to which the resulting data could contribute to the proper hazard classification of a pyrotechnic bulk material or munition end item. To that end, evaluations were made on the basis of:

- Potential contribution of the parameter to hazardous situations.
- The ability of the test to evaluate the parameter.
- Whether an alternative test method is available.
- Cost.

Consequently, numerical values were assigned to the ranking criteria to facilitate the comparison and recommendation of specific test methods.

2.1.2.1 <u>Relatability</u>. Relatability refers herein to the extent to which the test method simulates a relevant parameter or initiation mechanism found in the transportation or storage environment. The numerical values assigned to relatability were:

- 4 Found and expected in one or both of the transportation or storage environment.
- 3 Possibly found in one or both environments; the probability of occurrence is not known.
- 2 Possible but less probable in either environment.

- 1 Occurrence improbable in either environment.
- 0 Not considered to be relevant to hazard evaluation.

2.1.2.2 <u>Quantitative</u>. Quantitative is the term used to reflect the ability of the test method to quantitatively measure the particular parameter. The numerical values assigned were:

- 2 Precise, quantitative and objective measurement of the parameter.
- 2 Only available test method for the parameter.
- 1 Subjective quantitative measurement of the parameter.
- 1 Qualitative but objective measurement.
- 0 Measurement that is both qualitative and subjective.

2.1.2.3 <u>Scalability</u>. Scalability describes the confidence with which results from the test can be extrapolated and applied to full-scale situations. The numerical values assigned were:

- 3 Full-scale test.
- 3 Amply demonstrated scalability.
- 2 Scalability not thoroughly demonstrated but believed to be valid.
- 2 Only test method available.
- 1 Scalability considered to be poor.
- 0 Scalability demonstrated to be poor.

2.1.2.4 <u>Cost</u>. Cost becomes a relatively minor item in the context of hazard classification. The cost of classification testing can be regarded as part of a materials development cost, and as such, it makes an insignificant contribution to the unit cost for production quantities. Furthermore, the cost of hazard classification testing is small compared to the potential consequences of a single incident where proper classification could have resulted in reduced casualty losses. The numerical values assigned to cost were:

- 1 Relative cost less than \$400 per bulk material or end item.
- 0 Relative cost greater than \$401 per bulk material or end item.

2.1.2.5 <u>Application of Ranking Values</u>. The ranking values, except cost, determined as described above are applied additively for each test method. Cost was considered only when other factors were equal. A "perfect" test method would have a ranking value of 10.

2.2 <u>Tests Performed.</u> Tests were conducted utilizing those candidate methods for which sufficient references were not available.

2.2.1 Differential Thermal Analysis. Differential thermal analysis testing was conducted in accordance with the procedure outlined in appendix B, method 112.

2.2.2 Parr Bomb Calorimeter. Parr Bomb calorimeter testing was conducted in accordance with the procedure outlined in appendix B, method 117.

2.2.3 Hygroscopicity. The procedure outlined in appendix B, method 303, was used to conduct hygroscopicity testing.

2.2.4 Moisture (Desiccation Method). Moisture testing by the desiccation method was conducted in accordance with the procedure outlined in appendix B, method 304.

2.2.5 Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method). Moisture and volatiles testing by the vacuum oven method was conducted in accordance with the procedure outlined in appendix B, method 305.

2.2.6 Isothermal Analysis (Multipount DTA). This is a variation of standard differential thermal analysis, the difference being in the controlled rate of heat applied externally. Isothermal analysis is supplemental to the standard DTA and can result in a more definitive evaluation of the potential thermal hazards of materials exhibiting rate-controlled reactions due to prolonged exposures at near-ignition temperatures.

A standard DTA is first performed. If no exotherm is observed below 500°C, the material is considered thermally safe. From the standard DTA results, a temperature is selected for the isothermal analysis. A 25 milligram sample is weighed into the sample tank, a thermocouple is placed into the material and set aside until the temperature block has stabilized. The sample tank is then introduced into the block, and the time is noted on the recorder. Within four to five minutes, the temperature of the sample will stabilize. The sample is observed for 20 to 30 minutes for endotherms and exotherms. A typical diagram of an isothermic analysis system is shown in figure 2.

3.0 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1 <u>Tests Performed</u>. The pyrotechnic bulk materials tested were:

- Green Smoke Mix IV, Drawing Number B 143-2-1.
- Violet Smoke Mix IV, Drawing Number B 143-5-1.

3.1.1 Differential Thermal Analysis. The average of 10 test runs on each sample produced the following results:

- Green IV
 - Exhibited exotherms at 166. 49°C and 221. 68°C, the decomposition temperature.



Figure 2. Block Diagram of the Isothermal Analysis Apparatus

- Exhibited endotherms at 68.78°C (transition of crystalline state), 117.75°C (melting of sulfur), and 178.64°C (sulfur - potassium chlorate reaction).
- Violet IV
 - Exhibited exotherms at 117.59°C (small peak), 175.45°C, and 239.88°C, the decomposition temperature.
 - Exhibited endotherms at 70.22°C (transition of crystalline state), 119.34°C (melting of sulfur), and 200.80°C (sulfur - potassium chlorate reaction).

The differential thermal analysis is a valid test that detects the chemical and physical changes occurring within the specimen as a function of temperature. However, the results may not be scalable because of the small sample size and variation in consolidation density. The test relates to initiation sensitivity and stability and may be more meaningful than either thermal stability or ignition and unconfined burning tests.

3.1.2 Parr Bomb Calorimeter. The average of 11 test runs on each sample produced the following results:

- Green IV Gross heat of combustion = 3.432 Kcal/gm = 6177 BTU/lb.
- Violet IV Gross heat of combustion = 2.816 Kcal/gm = 5069 BTU/lb.

While the Parr Bomb calorimeter does not provide results directly applicable to hazards classification, it does provide specific output energy available in the material. The specific output energy thus obtained can be applied to assessment of the consequence of functioning full-scale quantities, and it can influence quantity-distance and protective measures requirements. The scalability of Parr Bomb calorimeter testing is questionable because the sample is small and very likely not representative of the consolidation density of a full-scale mixture.

3.1.3 Hygroscopicity. Three samples of Green Smoke IV absorbed an average of 3.45 percent by weight of moisture under prolonged exposure to $30 \pm 2^{\circ}$ C and 90 percent relative humidity. Three samples of Violet Smoke IV absorbed an average of 26.1 percent of moisture under the same conditions. Hygroscopicity testing does not correlate with sensitivity or output and is not relevant to hazards classification except in cases where moisture content is known to significantly affect the reaction of a material.

3.1.4 Moisture (Desiccation Method). Three samples of Green Smoke IV were found to contain an average of 0.53 percent by weight of moisture; Violet Smoke IV, 0.76 percent. Moisture content of a material is not relevant to hazards classification.

3.1.5 Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method). Sixteen samples of Green Smoke IV were tested and found to contain 0.621 percent by weight of moisture and volatiles. Similarly, 17 samples of Violet Smoke IV were found to contain 0.524 percent moisture and volatiles. Moisture and volatile content of a material is not relevant to hazards classification.

3.1.6 Isothermal Analysis. Three samples each of Green Smoke IV and Violet Smoke IV were tested by isothermal analysis techniques. Neither material could be tested at a temperature greater than 169.25°C without decomposition. Both materials were tested at 169.25°C for 2 hours and decomposed without producing measurable exotherms or endotherms.

Results of testing with the two sulfur-based smokes are inconclusive, but it is believed that isothermal analysis, in conjunction with differential thermal analysis can be a valuable tool for assessing the reactivity of a pyrotechnic bulk material.

3.2 <u>Tests Evaluated</u>. Table 1 is a listing of the candidate test methods and references. The classification test method summary for each test presents the findings of engineering reviews and analyses. The application, parametric and ranking value results for all tests are summarized in table 2. A complete set of classification method summary sheets appear in appendix A.

3.3 <u>Discussion</u>. TB 700-2 does not adequately provide for the hazard classification of pyrotechnic bulk materials and munition end items. The TB 700-2 classification procedures are based on the presumption of an explosive material having a critical diameter of less than 1-1/2 or 2 inches. Classifications determined in accordance with TB 700-2 are based solely upon initiation sensitivity with no regard being given to output consequences of a reaction. It is implied that output damage potential is related to initiation sensitivity. That implication is not supported by actual experience. Recent experience with the testing of 70 pyrotechnic materials (as reported in GE-MTSD-R-059, et al.) has shown that a Class 7 explosion hazard results have been obtained only from the impact sensitivity test (106). The other tests invariably produced results corresponding to Class 2, fire hazard. The risk attendant to recognition that a pyrotechnic material, Class 2, might be transported or stored in a configuration greater than its particular critical diameter demands concern.

3.3.1 Initiation Sensitivity. Initiation sensitivity of a pyrotechnic material is of importance in determining hazards classification. The stimuli of interest are open flame, indirect thermal, mechanical impact, hydrodynamic shock, and electrostatic discharge. Sensitivity to friction stimuli and dust explosibility are for the most part irrelevant to the transportation or storage environments.

3.3.1.1 <u>Open Flame</u>. It is assumed that a pyrotechnic material is sensitive to initiation by open flame since that is an inherent characteristic. The essential question is whether the material once initiated will undergo transition to detonation. The thermal ignition test (417), ranking value 8, provides the required data on a full-scale basis. The ignition and unconfined burning test (103), ranking value 4, serves only to demonstrate that a pyrotechnic will burn in a fire.

3.3.1.2 <u>Indirect Thermal.</u> Indirect thermal initiation, sensitivity, and thermal stability are of paramount concern in determing the hazard classification of a pyrotechnic material. Those parameters are the following tests:

Number	Test	Reference
101	Thermal Stability (75 [°] C Oven Method)	
102	Thermal Stability (Tube Method)	
103	Ignition and Unconfined Burning	
104	Burning Propagation Rate (Screen)	
105	Burning Propagation Rate (Tube)	
106	Impact Sensitivity (Bureau of Explosives Apparatus)	
107	Bullet Impact Friction	
108	Electrical Spark Sensitivity	
112	Differential Thermal Analysis	
113	Detonation - Compression	m
114	Card Gap	ldix
115	High Explosive Equivalency	pper
116	Closed Bomb	×.
117	Parr Bomb Calorimeter	
201	Propagation/Transition Test A	
202	Propagation/Transition Test B	
203	External Heat Test C	
204	Transporation Rough Handling	
205	Crash Safety (40 Foot Drop)	
301	Bulk Density	
302	Compatibility (Reactivity with Surroundings)	
303	Hygroscopicity	
304	Moisture (Desiccation Method)	
305	Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method)	
306	Moisture and Total Volatiles (Gas Chromato- graphic Method) 13	

Table 1. Candidate Test Methods

Number	Test	Reference
401	75 [°] C International Heat Test	AMCP 385-177
402	100 [°] C Heat Test	AMCP 385-177
403	Explosion Temperature Test	AMCP 385-177
404	Hot Bar Test	AMCP 385-177
405	Impact Sensitivity Test (Bureau of Mines Apparatus)	106 (Different Apparatus)
406	Impact Sensitivity Test (Picatinny Arsenal Apparatus)	106 (Different Apparatus)
407	Friction Pendulum Test	AMCP 385-177
408	Friction Sensitivity Test	EA-FR-4D11
409	Impingement Reaction Test	EA-FR-4D11
410	Abel Heat Test	*
411	Isothermal Analysis	TES-20-73-2
• 412'	Hartmann Dust Sensitivity	EA-FR-1D0X
413	Large Scale Parr Bomb	EA-FR-4D11
414	Carrier Medium Test	EA-FR-4D21
415	Charging and Blending Sequence Test	EA-FR-4D21
416	Mass-Effects Test	EA-FR-4D21
417	Thermal Ignition Test	EA-FR-4D21
418	Full-Scale Blending Test	EA-FR-4D21
419	End Item Electrostatic Sensitivity	**
420	Transporation Simulation Test	EA-FR-4D71 and GE-MTSD-R-058
421	Modified Detonation Test B	Method 421 Summary Sheet

Table 1. Candidate Test Methods (Cont'd)

*S. Fordham, "High Explosives and Propellants", Pergamon Press, 1966.

**C. Pique, "M139 Bomblet Electrostatic Testing", (Unpublished), Edgewood Arsenal Resident Laboratory Project 4G07.

	Ca	teg	ory	Appl: bility	ica- 7		T	уре]	Para	ame	eter								Ran	king V	/alue
Test No.	Bulk	End Item	Misc.	Transpor- tation	Storage	Sensitivity	Stability	Output	Property	Tempera- ture	Heat	Friction	Impact	Hydrodynamic Shock	Electric Spark	Reaction Rate	Energy	Air Blast	Propagation	Transition	Density	Reactivity	Moisture Content	Volatile Content	Triboelectrifi- cation	Parametric	Cost	Overall
101	X			Х	X	X				X																6	1	7
102	Х			X	X	x				Х																6	1	7
103	Х			Х	X			х												x						4	1	5
104	Х	_		X	x			x								x										6	1	7
105	Х			X	X			X								X										6	1	7
106	Х			Х	X	X							x													6	1	7
107	Х			Х	X	X						X	x													3	1	4
108	Х			X		X									X											7	1	8
112	Х				X	X	X			х	х															8	1	9
113	X			х	X	X								X												4	1	5
114	Х			Х	X	x								X												5	1	6
115	X			Х	X			X										X								7	0	7
116	X			Х	X			х								X	X	- 1								6	1	7
117			Х	Х	X			х							<u> </u>		Х									8	1	9
201		X		Х	X			Х											X							8	1	9
202		X		X	X			X											X							8	1	9
203		X		X	X			Х											X							8	0	8
204		X		Х		X							X													5	0	5
205		X		X		X							X													5	0	5

Table 2. Classification Test Accumulation and Ranking Summary

15

 \bullet

	Ca	tego	ory	Appl bility	ica- y		Ty	уре			Parameter										Ran	Ranking Value						
Test No.	Bulk	End Item	Misc.	Transpor- tation	Storage	Sensitivity	Stability	Output	Property	Tempera- ture	Heat	Friction	Impact	Hydrodynamic Shock	Electric Spark	Reaction Rate	Energy	Air Blast	Propagation	Transition	Density	Reactivity	Moisture Content	Volatile Content	Triboelectrifi- cation	Parametric	Cost	Overall
301			Х	X	X				X												Х					5	1	6
302			х		Х		X															X	6 - <mark>-</mark>	l.		7	1	8
303			x		Х				x														Х			.4	1	5
304			Х		X				x														X			4	1	5
305			Х		Х				X														Х	X		4	1	5
306			Х		Х				х														Х	X		4	1	5
401	Х				Χ		X			Х																6	1	7
402	Χ				Х		X			Х																4	1	5
403	Х			X	Х	X					X															4	1	ō
404	Х			X	Χ.	X					X															4	1	ō
405	Х			Х	Х	X					Î		X				Î.	p c	E I							6	1	7
406	Х		1	Х	Х	X							X											ļ		6	1	7
407	Х			Х		X						X														3	1	4
408	Х			Х		X						X														5	1	6
409	Х			X		X		l			l.	Х	X					ľ								4	1	5
410	Χ				X		X				Χ								_							7	1	8
411	Х				X	X				Х															1	8	1	9
412	Х				X	X					X						X									6	1	- 7
413	Х			X	Х			X		Х							X									6	1	7
414			Х						X																X	7	1	8

Table 2. Classification Test Accumulation and Ranking Summary (Cont'd)

	Cat	ego	ry	Appli tion	.ca-		Ту	pe			Parameter													Ranking Value				
Test No.	Bulk	End Item	Misc.	Transpor- tation	Storage	Sensitivity	Stability	Output	Property	Tempera- ture	Heat	Friction	Impact	Hydrodynamic Shock	Electric Spark	Reaction Rate	Energy	Air Blast	Propagation	Transition	Density	Reactivity	Moisture Content	Volatile Content	Triboelectrifi- cation	Parametric	Cost	Overall
415			х						x																x	8	1	9
416	X			Х	x	x		X						x				X		Х						7	0	7
417	Х			X	x	х		x									x			X						8	0	8
418	X								х																x	6	0	6
419		Х		X		Х									X											6	1	7
420		x		Х				Х											X							7	1	8
421		Х		Х	х			Х											X							8	1	9

Table 2. Classification Test Accumulation and Ranking Summary (Cont'd)

		Ranking Value
	Thermal Stability (75°C oven method) (101)	6
•	Thermal Stability (tube method) (102)	6
•	Differential Thermal Analysis (112)	8
•	75°C International Heat Test (401)	6
٠	100°C Heat Test (402)	4
•	Explosion Temperature Test (403)	4
•	Hot Bar Test (404)	4
	Isothermal Analysis (411)	8

The two thermal stability tests (101 and 102) are functionally similar in providing basic thermal stability data under reasonable maximum transportation and storage environmental conditions.

Differential thermal analysis (112) and isothermal analysis (411) provide meaningful data basic to an understanding of the chemical reactivity and physical changes of the pyrotechnic material.

3.3.1.3 <u>Mechanical Impact</u>. Mechanical impact initiation sensitivity is an important parameter to be considered in determining hazard classification because potential initiation sources are constantly present in the transportation and storage environment. Mechanical impact sensitivity is the subject of the following test methods:

		Ranking Value
٠	Impact Sensitivity (Bureau of Explosives Apparatus) (106)	6
•	Bullet Impact Friction (107)	3
•	Impact Sensitivity (Bureau of Mines Apparatus) (405)	6
•	Impact Sensitivity (Picatinny Arsenal Apparatus) (400	3) 6
	Impingement Reaction Test (409)	4

The impact sensitivity test (106) using the Bureau of Explosives apparatus provides meaningful data relevant to initiation sensitivity of a pyrotechnic material. The same test using different apparatus (405 or 406) has not yet been shown to correlate with the Bureau of Explosives apparatus.

3.3.1.4 <u>Hydrodynamic Shock.</u> Hydrodynamic shock sensitivity is less relatable to pyrotechnic materials as it is to explosives. Hydrodynamic shock is the intended initiation stimulus for most explosives, whereas pyrotechnics are usually designed to be flame initiated. Pyrotechnics have been shown (GE-MTSD-R-059, et al.) to be shock insensitive, but the possibility should be considered. The tests for hydrodynamic shock sensitivity are:

		Ranking Value
•	Detonation-Compression (113)	4
٠	Card Gap (114)	5
•	Mass-Effects Test (416)	7

The mass-effects test (416) is superior to the other two methods for evaluation of a pyrotechnic material, principally because quantities of material more representative of pyrotechnic handling are used. The test combines hydrodynamic shock sensitivity determination with a limit level test of critical diameter and provides blast output measurements if the material does explode or detonate. There has been little experience to date with the mass-effects test (416), but the results are promising (EA-FR-4D21).

3.3.1.5 <u>Electrostatic Discharge</u>. Electrostatic discharge as an initiation stimulus is more relevant to manufacturing hazards than to transportation and storage. It must be recognized, however, that thermoplastic materials are increasingly replacing metals for munition end item cases and for bulk and end-item packaging. Pyrotechnics are no longer necessarily afforded the electrostatic protection of a conductive enclosure.

Electric spark sensitivity testing (108), ranking value 7, can provide data useful in assessing the extent to which a material might be vulnerable to electrostatic initiation.

3.3.2 Output Energy Release. The output energy release characteristics of a pyrotechnic are as important as sensitivity in determining hazard classification. Output data will contribute to the establishment of quantity-distance separation criteria. The following tests provide output data:

•	Ignition and Unconfined Burning (103)	4
•	Burning Propagation Rate (Screen) (104)	6
•	Burning Propagation Rate (Tube) (105)	6
•	High Explosive Equivalency (115)	7
٠	Closed Bomb (116)	6
•	Parr Bomb Calorimeter (117)	8
٠	Hartmann Dust Sensitivity (412)	6
٠	Large Scale Parr Bomb (413)	6
•	Mass-Effects Test (416)	7
•	Thermal Ignition Test (417)	8

Either of the burning propagation rate tests (104 or 105) provides useful data relative to pyrotechnic performance, and is superior to ignition and unconfined burning (103). Since more representative quantities of material are used, mass-effects test (416) provides more meaningful data than does the high explosive equivalency test (115).

The closed bomb (116) and the parr bomb calorimeter (117) tests provide basic output energy data for a pyrotechnic, but data therefrom are not always scalable to large quantities. Eventual hazard classification should be based upon larger samples, approaching full-scale, such as the mass-effects test (416) and the thermal ignition test (417). The Hartmann dust sensitivity test (412) (as noted in paragraph 3.3.1) is not relevant.

3.3.3 End-Item Testing. Propagation/transition tests A and B (201 and 202), ranking value 8 for both, provide meaningful data for hazards evaluation. These tests answer two basic questions:

- If an end item functions within its shipping container, will the reaction propagate to other similar items in the container?
- If there is propagation within a container, will the reaction propagate to other similar items in an adjacent container under free air conditions?

The answers to these questions guide the classifying authority in the establishment of quantity-distance requirements for the item under test. The modified detonation test B (421), ranking value 8, refines the test by modifying the procedure for arranging the containers in a "B" test in those cases where the standard "A" or "B" test resulted in container rupture. As before, TB 700-2 is found to be presuming an explosive in which case proximity rather than configuration is paramount. However, pyrotechnic end items frequently exhibit a directional output, especially if the end item is propulsive. In such cases, the greatest propagation hazard is in the direction of the donor output, and this modified procedure places the acceptor in the most vulnerable position.

Another area of concern is whether the transportation carrier contributes confinement that would produce a more severe output from a "B" test. The transportation simulation test (420), ranking value 7, is intended to subject the end items to partial confinement, such as within a carrier, in a reduced scale propagation test. Results to date (GE-MTSD-R-058 and EA-FR-4D71) are inconclusive but this approach is worth of further study.

The external heat test C (203), ranking value 8, is intended to provide the classifying agency with data on the performance of a quantity of packaged end items enveloped in a fire. The results of the "C" test contribute significantly to the establishment of quantity-distance requirements.

In its present form, the end-item electrostatic sensitivity test (419), ranking value 6, is used to assure that an end item is insensitive by several orders of magnitude to electrostatic initiation. As pointed out in paragraph 3.3.1.5, use of containers other than metal increases vulnerability of an end item to electrostatic stimulation. 3.3.4 Thermal Output. Since pyrotechnics burn rather than explode, the greatest energy output hazard is thermal flux rather than blast phenomena. Knowledge of the thermal output characteristics of pyrotechnic bulk material in large quantities is essential to assessment of hazard potentials and for determination of proper classification. Heat flux data is occasionally gathered in the course of other testing, but no procedures are available for specifically evaluating this parameter, nor have performance standards and limits been established.

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 <u>Specific Test Methods</u>. The results gathered from the test data suggest that a supplement to Technical Bulletin 700-2 be prepared and issued to include hazard classification testing procedures for pyrotechnic bulk materials and munition end items. The DOD component responsible for an item is at liberty to require additional testing in accordance with paragraph 1.3 of TB 700-2. It is believed that the supplemental tests will eventually gain acceptance throughout the pyrotechnic community.

4.1.1 Recommended Tests for Inclusion. The following hazard classification tests for pyrotechnics are recommended for inclusion into a supplement to TB 700-2 and for eventual inclusion into a revised TB 700-2:

Number	Bulk Test Material	Remarks
101*	Thermal Stability (75°C Oven Method)	102 Optional
102	Thermal Stability (Tube Method)	101 Optional
104	Burning Propagation Rate (Screen)	105 Optional
105	Burning Propagation Rate (Tube)	104 Optional
106*	Impact Sensitivity (Bureau of Explosives Apparatus)	
108	Electrical Spark Sensitivity	
112	Differential Thermal Analysis	
116	Closed Bomb	
117	Parr Bomb Calorimeter	
301	Bulk Density	
411	Isothermal Analysis	With 112
41 6	Mass Effects Test	
417	Thermal Ignition Test	

* Performance now required for TB 700-2 compliance.

Number	End-Item Material	Remarks
201*	Propagation/Transition Test A	
202*	Propagation/Transition Test B	
203	External Heat Test C	
421	Modified Detonation Test B	

4.1.2 Exclusions. The following hazard classification tests for pyrotechnics are recommended for exclusion from a supplement to TB 700-2 and eventual exclusion from a revised TB 700-2.

Number	Test
103*	Ignition and Uncontinued Burning
107	Bullet Impact - Friction
113*	Detonation - Compression
114*	Card Gap
115	High Explosive Equivalency
204	Transportation Rough Handling
205	Crash Safety (40 foot Drop)
302	Compatibility (Reactivity with Surroundings)
303	Hygroscopicity
304	Moisture (Desiccation Method)
305	Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method)
306	Moisture and Total Volatiles (Gas Chromatograph Method)
401	75°C International Heat Test
402	100° C Heat Test
403	Explosion Temperature Test
404	Hot Bar Test
405	Impact Sensitivity Test (Bureau of Mines Apparatus)
406	Impact Sensitivity Test (Picatinny Arsenal Apparatus)
407	Friction Pendulum Test
408	Friction Sensitivity Test
409	Impingement Reaction Test

* Performance now required for TB 700-2 compliance.

Number

Test

410	Abel Heat Test
412	Hartmann Dust Sensitivity
413	Large Scale Parr Bomb
414	Carrier Medium Tests
415	Changing and Blending Sequence Test
418	Full-Scale Blending Test

4.1.3 Test Recommended for Further Development. It is recommended that hazard classification tests of the following types be made the subject of additional projects to develop criteria, apparatus and procedures and to demonstrate their validity:

Number	Test
<mark>41</mark> 9	End Item Electrostatic Sensitivity
420	Transportation Simulation Test
None	Thermal Output, paragraph 3.3.4

4.2 <u>Other Recommendations</u>. The following statements comprise other recommendations resulting from the research conducted.

- Additional projects should be initiated to supplement this study by validating the classification tests with pyrotechnic materials other than smoke mixes. The broadened scope of test validation would enhance the credibility of findings and recommendations.
- Some nonflammable wicking material such as asbestos or sand should be substituted for the sawdust in the ignition and unconfined burning test (103). Sawdust is a variable material, and some other material would be more reproducible.
- The blast transducers should be rearranged in the high explosive equivalency test (115). The spiral array of transducers now used can result in inconclusive data because a pyrotechnic sample frequently results in pneumatic rupture of the test vessel and the resulting airblast overpressures are not cylindrically symmetric. It would be more desirable to arrange the transducers in four quadrants in each of two concentric circles. Data analysis would then reveal airblast asymmetry and allow corrections to be applied.
- A program should be conducted to document hazard classification procedures for pyrotechnic manufacture and assembly operations. TB 700-2 procedures now being applied to pyrotechnic manufacture do not properly assess the hazards involved. No account is taken of either the properties of pyrotechnics or the nature of the manufacturing environment.

SELECTED REFERENCES

Department of the Army Technical Bulletin TB 700-2, "Explosives Hazard Classification Procedures" Change 1, May 1968, Department of the Army, The Navy and the Air Force, and Defense Supply Agency.

U. S. Army Materiel Command, AMC P 385-177, "Engineering Design Handbook, Explosives Series, Properties of Explosives of Military Interest", March 1961.

W. R. Nestle, EA-FR-4D11, "Formulation of Hazard Evaluation Indices for Pyrotechnic Manufacturing Processes", National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-27750, 1974.

A. H. Lasseigne, TES-20-73-2, "Hazard Classification of Explosives for Transportation – Evaluation of Test Methods", May 1973, Department of Transportation, General Electric Co., Contract DOT-AS-10057/1.

F. L. McIntyre, EA-FR-4D21, "Identification and Evaluation of Hazards Associated with Blending of HC White Smoke Mix by Jet Airmix Process", January 1974, National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-27750.

W. R. Wilcox, EA-FR-1D0X, "Pyrotechnic Dust Sensitivity Testing Program", June 1973, National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-27750.

P. V. King, Sr. and D. M. Koger, GE-MTSO-R-035, "Pyrotechnic Hazards Classification and Evaluation Program, Phase I, May 1970, National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-23524.

P. V. King, Sr. and D. M. Koger, GE-MTSD-R-058, "Pyrotechnic Hazards Classification and Evaluation Program, Phase II, Segments 4-7, Investigation of Hazards Associated with Pyrotechnic Manufacturing Processes:, April 1971, National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-23524.

P. V. King, Sr. and D. M. Koger, GE-MTSD-R-059, "Pyrotechnic Hazards Classification and Evaluation Program, Phase III, Segments 1-4, Investigation of Sensitivity Test Methods and Procedures for Pyrotechnic Hazards Evaluation and Classification", April 1971, National Space Technology Laboratories, Bay St. Louis, MS 39520, General Electric Co., Contract NAS8-23524.

APPENDIX A - CLASSIFICATION METHOD SUMMARY SHEETS

		CLASSIFICATION	ILSI WEI	100 30					
NUMBER	TI	ST							
101		Thermal Stability (75 [°] C Oven method)							
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE		PARAMETER(S)				
Bulk	Trans	. & Storage	Sensitiv	ity	Temperature				
DESCRIPTION									
The sample is placed in an explosion-proof oven at a temperature of 75 ^o C and maintained at this temperature for a 48-hour period to determine whether it is physically and chemically stable.									
RATIONALE The sample is subjected to elevated temperatures to permit the observation of characteristic tendencies of the sample material to detonate, ignite, decompose or change in configuration under adverse storage conditions.									
APPARATUS									
Explosion p	roof ov	en regulated from	50 ⁰ C - 200 ⁰	PC					
Balance + 0. Thermocouple	2 mill and t	igram accuracy emperature recorde	er						
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS F	OR VALIDITY						
75 - 300 gra	ams	1 test for	a 48 hour d	duratio	n.				
SPECIAL REQUIT	REMENTS								
Sample is pu manufacture	re-weig r, date	hed and identified manufactured, lot	d as to: Satisfies Satisfi	ample d date s	esignation, lot n ampled.	umber,			
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RESULTS		REPORT				
GREEN IV		No No	reaction reaction		GE-MTSD-R035 GE-MTSD-R035	& R059 & R059			
PARAMETER		1	RELATABILITY	+QUANT	ATIVE+SCALABILITY	TOTAL			
Temperature			4	0	2	6			
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED									
\$125 per mat	\$125 per material RANK 1								
REMARKS									
This test re 75°C. The a reactivity. cannot stand	epresen addition The to alone	ts the universally n of a thermocoupl est subjects the s if results indica	accepted h e with the ample mater ate instabil	nigh te sample ial to ity.	mperature environ provides an indi one storage para	ment at cation of meter; it			

NUMBER TEST									
102		Thermal St	ability (Tube M	ethod)					
CATEGORY	APP	LICABILITY	TYPE		PARAMETER(S)				
Bulk	Tr	ans. & Storage	Sensitivit	у	Temperature				
DESCRIPTION This test is conducted to determine if a sample material is stable at a temperature of 75°C and evaluate potential hazards due to an explosion, ignition or a marked change in configuration indicated by a change in color or an excessive weight loss (>10%) that may occur at the 75°C temperature.									
If the samp uration due is incompat modes.	If the sample material explodes, ignites, or shows marked change in config- uration due to a change in color or gross loss in weight (> 10%) the material is incompatible for shipping or storage by standard transportation and storage modes.								
Stainless s Nichrome ri covered by	APPARATUS Stainless steel tube 3/8" OD by 8" length with a .035" wall thickness. Nichrome ribbon heater is wrapped on the outside of the tube. The tube is covered by 1-inch thickness of asbestos insulation.								
Balance <u>+</u> 0 Temperature Copper cons	.2 m reg tant	illigram accurac ulator for contr an thermocouple	y olling the heat - 2 each	ing tap	е				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TES	STS FOR VALIDITY						
5 grams		l test	48 hours durati	on					
designation date sample simulated	веме , 10 d, d	t number, lot si ate loaded. Con	s pre-weighed a ze, manufacture solidation to e	nd iden r's nam nd item	tified as to: e and plant des configuration	Sample ignation, may be			
TESTING EXPER	IENC	E	RESULTS		REPORT				
GREEN IV			None						
VIOLET IV			None						
PARAMETER	_		RELATABILITY	Y+QUANT	ATIVE+SCALABILI	TY = TOTAL			
Temperature			4	0	2	6			
APPROXIMATE C	OST	PER MATERIAL OR E	ND ITEM TESTED						
\$145 per ma	teri	al			RANK	1			
REMARKS									
Test evaluation is essentially qualitative. Test method cannot stand alone as a method of classification. This test represents the universally accepted high temperature environment at 75° C. This test is a suitable alternative to the oven method and it is not limited to solids. No testing by this method was conducted at NSTL because it is functionally no different from the 75° C oven method, No. 101.									

NUMBER		TEST						
103		Ignition ar	d Unconfin	ed Burning				
CATEGORY	APPL	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER(S)				
Bulk	TRAN	S, & STORAGE	Output	Transition				
A 2" cube is placed on a kerosene soaked sawdust bed, and the sawdust is ignited. The sample specimen is observed for signs of detonation or deflagration. The time of the reaction is measured. This test is run in two configurations: single cube and multiple cubes (4).								
This test determines whether a pyrotechnic, propellent or explosive material will undergo transition from deflagration to detonation when exposed to an open flame.								
APPARATUS								
Steel Pan Sawdust		Kerosene Match-head	igniter					
INSTRUMENTAT	ON							
Stop watch								
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
50-120 gm		3 tests (test)	2 each sin	gle cube and	one each mu	ltiple cu	be	
SPECIAL REQUI	REMEN	TS						
Sample scree stabilized t	ned t o amb	hrough a No. ient prior t	50 sieve to test.	and the tempe	rature of th	e specime	n	
TESTING EXPER GREEN IV VIOLET IV	IENCE		No De No De	tonation	GE-MTSD-R03 GE-MTSD-R03	5, R059 5, R059		
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY QUAN	TITATIVE SCA	LABILITY	TOTAL	
Transition				2	1	I	4	
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED								
\$30 per material RANK 1								
REMARKS This test was initially used for high explosive and I-C-T will result if the critical diameter of the sample specimen is less than 2". For pyro- technics and propellants this test only demonstrates that the propellants and pyrotechnics will burn. No evidence is available indicating that a pyro- technic material ever did more than burn during this test. Test results can vary due to wicking of the kerosene into the sample specimen.								

NUMBER	т	EST		2			
104		Burning Pro	pagation F	Rate (Scre	en)		
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	R(S)		
Bulk	TRANS	& STORAGE	Output	Rate o	f Reaction		
A bed of mat front is mea conditions.	erial sured	is ignited to determir	at one end ne a burnin	l, and the og propaga	transit ti tion rate u	me of the rea nder uncontro	action olled
RATIONALE This test de release can	termin be ded	es an open- uced.	air burnin	ig rate an	d, hence, t	he rate of en	nergy
APPARATUS 100-mesh sta propane torc INSTRUMENTATI	inless h for ∾ d elec	steel scre ignition. tric V time	en to supp er	oort bed o	f specimen	materials	
RAMPLE SIZE			TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			-
11 cubic inc	hes	5	IESTS FUR	VALIDITY			
Apparatus mu sample.	st be	screened fi	rom wind.	Determine	bulk densi	ty. Identif	y
GREEN IV	IENCE		RE NC	SULTS DNC DNC		REPORT	
PARAMETER		_	RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIV	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Rate of reac	tion			2	2	2	6
\$240 per mat REMARKS More meaning uncontinued This test ca	ost per erial ful da burnin n be u	ta are obta g. Applica tilized as	ained than able only t an alterna	TESTED from Test o solid o tive to t	No. 3, ign r granulate he tube met	RANK] ition and d materials. hod, No. 105	•

NUMBER		TEST						
105		Burning Pro	pagation R	ate (Tub	e)			
CATEGORY	APPL	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)			
Bulk	TRAN	IS. & STORAGE	Output	Rate o	f Reaction			
A cylinder of material partially confined in a steel tube is ignited at one end, and the transit time of the reaction front is measured to determine a burning propagation rate under partially confined conditions.								
RATIONALE								
The test det release unde	ermin er suc	es burning r h conditions	ate; it is at confin	possible ement.	e to obtain a	rate of energ	JÀ	
APPARATUS								
Prepared ste Ventilated h Propane torc	el tu lood <u>h for</u>	be to hold s	ample mate	rial				
Fuse wire an	d ele	ctric V time	r					
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
2.5 cubic in	ches	5						
Determine bu	lk de	⊤s nsity. Iden	tify sampl	e materia	al.			
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV			No	ne				
			no	ne				
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY T	TOTAL	
Rate of Reac	tion			2	2	2	6	
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED								
\$230 per mat	erial					RANK]		
REMARKS						_		
More meaningful data are obtained than from Test No. 3, ignition and uncondited burning. Could be applied to liquid as well as solid or granulated materials. This test can be utilized as an alternative to the screen method, No. 104.								
÷								

NUMBER	1	TEST						
106		Impace Sens	itivity Te	st (Burea	u of Explos	ives Apparatu	s)	
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETI	ER(S)			
Bulk	TRANS	. & STORAGE	SENSITIVITY	Impac	e			
A 10 mg. sample is subjected to impact by a weight falling from a pre- determined height.								
This test determines the sensitivity of a pyrotechnic, propellant or ex- plosive mixture to decomposition or detonation as a result of mechanical shock caused by impact.								
APPARATUS								
Bureau of Ex	plosiv	ves Test App	paratus					
None require force of imp	ed. St bact ar	train g <mark>a</mark> ge, id rebound c	l <mark>o</mark> ad cell, of the fall	, or Piezo ing weigh	plectic cryst it is optiona	tal to measur al.	e	
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
10 mil <mark>l</mark> igran	n	10 test	s at each	predetern	nined drop he	eight.		
sample stabi identify sam	REMENT lized nple ma Test	^s Sieving to 25 + 50 iterial as t must be per	ample thro C prior to type, ma formed unc	ough 50 me test. W nufacture	esh screen. Weigh materia date, lot r	Temperature al to 10 mg. number, date	of the tested,	
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV			No Re No Re React	action @ action @ ion @ 10'	3-3/4 or 10' 3-3/4	GE-MTSD-RO GE-MTSD-RO	35-R059 35-R059	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTI TATI VE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Impact				3	2	1	6	
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED								
\$170 per mat	\$170 per material							
REMARKS The test as defined is a "go-no go" test. A reaction at either drop height constitutes a "no go" and the material is classified as DOT restricted or Class A. Sample size is too small for good statistical data. Data obtained with this apparatus do not correlate with those obtained on other test apparati; such as the Bureau of Mines or PA apparatus.								

CANADA STRATEGY AND A STRATEGY AND A

*

NUMBER	L T	EST					
107	107 Bullet Impact (Friction)						
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		
Bulk	TRANS	& STORAGE	SENSITIVITY	Impact/	Friction		
DESCRIPTION A bulk material specimen is placed on a target table and a 0.30 caliber bullet is fired so that the bullet strikes perpendicular to the longitudinal axis of the specimen. Data is recorded to denote detonation, deflagration or no reaction.							
RATIONALE This test determines the sensitivity or specifically the critical diameter of a bulk or end item pyrotechnic propellant, explosive mixtures to the combination impact and friction.							
30 caliber weapon, bench mounted. Balance accurate to one gram (cast iron pipe with threaded caps for bulk testing)							
Blast gages to measure peak overpressure. Timing circuit to measure impact velocity.							
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
50-200 gms. bulk. 5 trials using a single bullet against a single target. Unlimited mass end 5 trials using multiple bullets (5) against a single							
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identification. Bulk samples must be screened through a number 50 sieve.							
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RE	BULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			No	one			
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIV	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Impact/Frict	ion			1	1	1	3
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED							
\$310 per mat	erial					RANK]	
Varied reactions can result depending upon where the bullet strikes the target. This is particularly noticeable in end item testing. This test is capable of imparting approximately 14 joules of energy to the sample but because of deflection some lesser value is obtained. Additionally, it is not known how the input energy is divided between impact and friction.							

NUMBER		EST						
108		Electrical Spark Sensitivity						
CATEGORY	APPLICABILITY		TYPE	PARAMETER(S)				
Bulk	TRANS.		SENSITIVITY	Electric	al Spark			
DESCRIPTION A small sample of material is placed on an anode, and an electrical spark is discharged through the material. The energy level at which the material initiates is determined.								
RATIONALE This test determines the sensitivity of a pyrotechnic mixture to ignition by an electrical spark. The sensitivity is expressed in terms of minimum energy (Joules) required for initiation.								
Huhes Model 410 or equivalent H V Power supply 10,000 vdc. capacitors; 0.002, 0.01, 0.02, 0.05, 0.1 and 1, microfarad limiting resistors and switching device charging and discharging capacitors.								
10,000 vdc voltmeter								
SAMPLE SIZE	NUMBER OF TESTS FOR VALIDITY							
10-50 mg.	Staircase - approximately 30.							
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample material screened through a No. 50 sieve. Sample material stabilized.								
TESTING EXPER GREEN IV VIOLET IV	IENCE		0.131 0.161	joule joule	G G	REPORT E-HERE- R059 E-HERE- R059		
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATI	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Electrical S	park			3	2	2	7	
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED								
\$100 per material RANK]								
This is the only test currently available to evaluate electrical spark sensitivity of bulk materials. The limitations of the test as it stands must be recognized: .The apparatus is not standardized; results will vary among testers. .Discharging the spark into a pile of material frequently results in the material being scattered. .To date, only spark energy has been considered; voltage might also be a significant factor.								

STY AND THE

NUMBER		TEST						
112	Differential Thermal Analysis (DTA)							
CATEGORY	APPL	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	er(s)			
Bulk		STORAGE	SENSITIVITY	Tempera	ture and H	eat		
DESCRIPTION								
Determine ig	nitic	on temperatur	e and read	tion prie	or to igni	tion.		
RATIONALE								
Temperature of reacting composition can determine its hazard potential either in its decomposition or any physical change.								
APPARATUS								
Fisher Model 200 Differential Thermal Analyzer (DTA).								
INSTRUMENTATION								
DTA with platinel thermocouples and dual tract strip chart recorder.								
SAMPLE SIZE	NUMBER OF	JMBER OF TESTS FOR VALIDITY						
50-100 mg.		3						
SPECIAL REQUIT	REMEN	TS						
Particle size: Sample 100-200 mesh. Reference (Alumina) 100-200 mesh.								
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV			221.6	58 ⁰ C		9 V. par.	3.1.1	
VIOLET IV			239.8	386C		9 V. par.	3.1.1	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITAT	IVE SCALAB	ILITY TO	TAL
Ignition Temperature				3	2	3	}	8
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED								
\$190 per mat	terial					RANK]	
Valid test, extremely useful in determining reaction characteristics of pyrotechnic materials, however, the controlled rate of heating being extremely applied can give suspect exotherms.								
NUMBER		TEST						
---	------------------------------------	--	---	--	--	---	------------------	
113		Detonation	- Compress	ion				
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	(s)			
Bulk	TRANS	S. & STORAGE	SENSITIVITY	Hydrodyr	omic Shock			
DESCRIPTION								
A two inch o number 8 bla	ube o sting	f a pyrotech cap in cont	nic mixtur act with t	e is plac he specim	ed atop a l en is initi	ead cylinder ated.	and a	
RATIONALE								
This test de of moderate	shock	nes the sens and heat of	itivity of a number	a pyrote 8 blastin	chnic mater g cap.	rial to the e	xposure	
Open Fie ld 1 Solid lead of Mild steel p Number 8 bla	Test cylind blate, asting	er - 1-1/2" SAE 1010-10	diameter b)30 1/2" th	y 4" long ick by 12	" square			
None Require	I QN							
Go-No Go Gag	je							
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
50-300 grams		5						
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENT	rs						
Sample scree test specime	ened then stal	hrough a No. bilized to a	50 sieve Ambient tem	prior to perature.	test and te	emperature of	the	
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV			No Re	action	(E-MTSD-R035,	R059	
VIOLET IV			No Re	action	(GE-MTSD-R035,	R059	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATI	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Hydrodyromic	: Shocl	k		2	1	1	4	
APPROXIMATE C	OST PE	R MATERIAL C	R END ITEM	TESTED				
6 m m								
\$150 per mat	erial					RANK 1		
REMARKS This test is deformation known tolera diameter equ mixtures.	a qua of the ince. ual to	alitative te e lead cylir This test i or less tha	est where t ider. This is only val an 2 inches	he result is measu id for a , general	ant reaction red by a go material w ly excludin	on is the o/no-go gage n ith a critica ng pyrotechni	with a l c	

A REAL PROPERTY OF A REAL PROPER

NUMBER	Т	EST	_				
114		Card Gap Te	st				
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		-
Bulk	TRANS	. & STORAGE	SENSITIVITY	Hydrodyr	amic Shock		
DESCRIPTION A mixture, two tube is set special blas a clean hole	1-1/2 1" x in a 6 ting c the d	" x 5" sche 2" diameter " square x ap is initi iameter of	dule 80 pi pentolite 3/8" thick ated and t the pipe i	pe is fil pellets witness he result n the wit	lled with a are placed plate. A ts are dete tness plate	pyrotechnic e atop the tube J-2 engineers rmined by obse	xplosive . The erving
RATIONALE							
This test de of external	termin shock	es the reac and heat of	tion of a a an explos	pyrotechr ion.	nic materia	l under the in	fluence
APPARATUS Co thickness. X 3/8". Two thick. 1/16"	ld dra Steel penol plast	wn seamless witness pla ite pellets ic spacers.	tube 1-1/ te SAE 101 1" x 2" d	2" diamet O steel w iameter.	er, 5-1/2" With Rockwe Cellulose	length, .200 <u>+</u> 11 hardness B acetate cords	.20 wall 6" x 6" 0.01"
Non Required	•						
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
50-300 grams		Trial an no deton	d observat ation.	ion to ob	otain 50% va	alue. Minimum	13 if
Sample screen prior to tes	ned th	s rough a No.	50 sieve	and stabi	lized to an	nbient tempera	ture
TESTING EXPERI	ENCE		RES	BULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			Burne Burne	d d	1	GE-MTSD-RO35, GE-MTSD-RO35,	R059 R059
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATI	VE SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Hydr <mark>o</mark> dynamic	Shock			3	1	1	5
APPROXIMATE C	OST PE	MATERIAL C	R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$240 per mate	erial					RANK]	
Test presupposes that a detonation will occur. The value obtained is expressed in number of cards which equates to a form of classification. Test has value for determining explosives properties but not necessarily a good classification test. Detonation will not result with materials having critical diameters greater than 1.44", thus excluding pyrotechnic mixtures in general.							

NUMBER		TEST							
115		High Explos	ive Equiva	lency					
CATEGORY	APP	LICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)				
Bulk	TRA	NS. & STORAGE	Output	High Exp	olosive Equiv	alency			
DESCRIPTION									
A confined s	sampl	e is initiate	d by a J-2	blastin	g cap.				
1									
RATIONALE									
Determines r sample to th	sample to the energy released by a high explosive under the same conditions.								
APPARATUS									
Capped steel	l tub	be specimen ho	lder and c	overhead :	support.				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION								
Blast overp	ressu	ure instrument	ation syst	tem with	d at a processi	ng capabilit	у.		
SAMPLE SIZE	_	NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY					
EQ. 200 anoma		7 /5	10 2 6 4	for unfor					
50-500 grains	>	/ (5 Samp	<i>i</i> , ∠ <i>u</i> -4	for rele	rence)				
SPECIAL REQUI	REME	NTS							
Sieve sample	e thr	rough 50-mesh	screen.	dentify	sample materi	al.			
		eugn ee meen							
TESTING EXPER	IENC	e	96	E		00.000			
GREEN IV	ENG	E	4.30%	6 TNT	GE	-MTSD-R035	R059		
VIOLET IV			6.53%	6 TNT	GE	-MTSD-R035,	R059		
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL		
Blast overp	ressu	ire and impuls	e	3	2	2	7		
expressed as	5 /0 (
APPROXIMATE C	OST	PER MATERIAL O	R END ITEM	TESTED					
\$720 per sam	nple	•				RANK			
REMARKS This	s tes	st permits eva	luation of	a mater	ial's damage	potential by	obtain-		
ing an equiva	alent	t mass at high	explosive	, however	r, the materi	als airblast	para-		
meters could	be a	applied direct	ly to engi	neering	problems. Th	is test is m	eaning-		
to establish	quar	tity-distance	requireme	ents for	the material.	The spiral	array		
of pressure t	trans	ducers descri	bed for Me	thod 115	in Appendix I	B is subject	to		
spurious resultechnic mixt	lts	because the a	irblast ma	y not be	concentric.	Frequently	pyro-		
directional	airbl	ast. An arra	v of eight	transdu	cers in four	quandrants a	t two		
radii will re	esult	in more mean	ingful dat	a.					
Appendix A			36						

NUMBER	Т	ST	_				
116		Closed Bomb	(Instrume	ented Par	rr Bomb)		
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		
Bulk	TRANS	& STORAGE	Output	Rate o	of Reactio	on and Energy I	Release
DESCRIPTION							
The sample i to obtain a energy relea	s igni rate o sed.	ted in a cl f pressure	osed bomb. rise value	Pressue that is	re versus proporti	time data are onal to rate o	e recorded of
The rates of same rates f to a high ex	react for a h plosive	ion and ene igh explosi es.	ergy releas ve in an a	e for th ttempt t	e sample to replace	are compared the samples of	to the output
APPARATUS							
200 cc close Ignition sys	d bomb tem						
Dynamic pres Analytical b	on sure re alance	ecording sy	stem				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
10-40 grams		6					
SPECIAL REQUIR	REMENTS						
Identify sam	ple mat	terial					
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RES	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			220 p 200 p	sig .8 s sig .8 s	ec/gm ec/gm	GE-MTSD-059 GE-MTSD-059	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITA	TIVE SCALABILI	TY TOTAL
Rate of reac release. "R and "Relativ	tion an elative e Force	nd energy e Quickness e"	н	3	2	1	6
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL O	R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$200 per sam	ple					RANK]	
REMARKS							
Does not cor representati	relate ve of a	well with actual cond	larger sca itions bec	le equiv ause of	alency te small qua	sting. Not ntity tested.	

NUMBER	Т	EST						
117		Parr Bomb (Calorimeter					
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER)			
Misc.	TRANS	, & STORAGE	Output	Energy O	utput			
Determine th combustion a	ne ener and hea	gy output p at of explos	per unit ma sion	ass of reacti	ng compo	osition as heat	t of	
DATIONAL D							-	
Energy outpu	ıt per	unit mass o	can be used	d to determin	e hazaro	l potential		
Parr Bomb Ca	alorime e or th	eter <mark>S</mark> eries	1300 and a	associated eq	uipment. re versus	s time		
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
1.0 gram		3						
Special Requi	REMENT	s 1 in the bu	lk granulaı	r state.				
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV VIOLET IV			6,177 5,069	7.84 Btu/lb. 9.24 Btu/lb.	0	9.V. par. 3.1.2 9.V. par. 3.1.2	2	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY QUA	ANTITATI	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Energy Outpu	it			3	2	3	8	
APPROXIMATE C	OST PE	R MATERIAL C	OR END ITEM	TESTED				
\$320 per mat	erials					RANK]		
Excellent test for evaluation of fuels and some pyrotechnics. Granular samples are mandatory. Spurious results can be obtained because of the high partial pressure of oxygen in the bomb. For instance, dyestuff might burn under 5 atmospheres of oxygen but not in air.								

and the second se

NUMBER	-	TEST						
201		Propagation	n/Transiti	on Test A				
CATEGORY	APP	LICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETI	ER(S)			
END ITEM	TRA	NS, & STORAGE	Output	Propa	gation			
This test is experimental performed on	cor or as	iducted on pyr standard stor single loaded	rotechnic (rage and sl end item (end items nipping co container.	which are ontainer.	packaged in a The test is	n	
RATIONALE								
This test de surrounding	etern end	nines whether items within	the funct the same	ioning of container.	one round	will propagat	e to	
APPARATUS Open field t blasting cap end item.	esti or,	ng employing preferrably	end item device fo	backing co pr initia	ontainer. ting normal	J-2 engineers function of	special the	
Heat Flux Documentary Motion Picture Blast Measurement Before and After Still Photograph								
Approx. 1.5 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size								
Sample ident	REME ific	ation.						
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV (VIOLET IV (Gren Gren	ade) ade)	No Pr No Pr	ropagatior ropagatior		GE-MTSD-R035, GE-MTSD-R035,	R059 R059	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATI	VE SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Propagation	with	in container		3	2	3	8	
APPROXIMATE C	OST	PER MATERIAL O	R END ITEM	TESTED				
\$280 per ite	m					RANK]		
REMARKS								
Test must be configuratio but serve to	per n. est	formed on eac Results from ablish compat	ch end iten this test cibility du	n and in e do not le uring stor	each shippin ead directly rage and tr	ng container y to classifi ansportation.	cation	

NUMBER		TEST						
202		Propagation	n/Transitio	on Test B				
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	R(S)			
END ITEM	TRAN	S, & STORAGE	Output	Propag	ation			
DESCRIPTION								
This test is experimental performed or	s cond l or s n two	ducted on pyr tandard stor end item cor	rotechnic e rage and sl ntainers p	end item w nipping co laced adja	hich are pao ntainers. cent to one	ckaged in This test is another.		
RATIONALE								
This test de propagates f	etermi to an	nes whether acceptor co	functionin ntainer pla	ng of a do aced adjac	nor round in ent to the (n a donor con donor contain	tainer er.	
J-2 engineer normal funct	pen fi rs spe tion a	ield testing ecial blastin at the end i	employing ng cap or, tem.	two (2) e preferrab	nd item pac ly, device	kaging contai for initiatin	ners, g	
INSTRUMENTAT	ION							
Heat Flux Documentary Motion Picture Blast Measurement Before and After Still Photographs								
SAMPLE SIZE NUMBER OF TESTS FOR VALIDITY								
Approx. 3 cu depending or size	ı. ft. ı pkg.	Five or u	until propa	agation oc	curs.			
SPECIAL REQUIT	REMEN	TS					-	
Sample ident	tifica	tion.						
TESTING EXPER GREEN IV VIOLET IV	Grena Grena	ade) ade)	Not n	sults required required	Gi Gi	REPORT E-MTSD-R035, E-MTSD-R035,	R059 R059	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABLLITY	OHANTITATIV	SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
				0			IUTAL	
Propagation	to ad	ijacent conta	ainer	3	2	3	8	
APPROXIMATE C	OST P	ER MATERIAL C	R END ITEM	TESTED		RANK 1		
REMARKS	:111			•				
This test is performed in the event the standard end item test, detonation test "A" results in propagation or the shipping container ruptures. This test is omitted if the results of the propagation/transition test A are negative. Due to the ambiguity of the placement of the donor & acceptor containers, test results can be varied. Results from this test do not lead directly to classification but serve to establish compatibility during storage and transportation.								

NUMBER		TEST					
203	< 1	External He	at Test ((C Test)			
CATEGORY	APPL	ICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		
END ITEM	TRA	NS. & STORAGE	Output	Propag	ation		
DESCRIPTION							
This test is experimental containers a	or or or	ducted on pyr standard stor sed in this t	otechnic e age and sh est.	end items hipping co	which are pa ontainers. (ackaged in One to six	
This test de detonation c	eterm of pa	ines the pote ckaged end it	ntial haza ems when t	ards of t hey are o	ransition fro enveloped in	om deflagrati a hot open f	on to ire.
APPARATUS							-
Open field t One to six b diesel fuel	esti oxes	ng placed atop	a wooden p	vile 3' x	3' soaked wi	ith 50 gallor	is of
Heat Flux Optical Pyro (Optical Mul	mete tich	r or annel Analyze	Docum Befor r)	entary Mo e and Aft	otion Picture ter Still Pho	e otography	
Approx. 10 c depending on size	u.f pkg	NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY		-	
SPECIAL REQUI	REME	ITS					
Sample ident	ific	ation					
GREEN IV	Gren	ade) ade)	ne: No ex No ex	plosion	GE	-NTSD-R035, -NTSD-R035,	R059 R059
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Propagation				3	2	3	8
PPROXIMATE C	OST F	PER MATERIAL O	R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$740 per ite	m					RANK 0	
EMARKS This test is Results of t transportati	com his on;	barable to "w test results they do not l	orst case" in establi ead direct	conditio shing con ly to cla	ons in a tran npatibility d assification.	sportation a luring storag	ccident e and

NUMBER		TEST					
204		Transporta	tion Rough	Handling			
CATEGORY	APPL	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	R(S)		
END ITEM	TRAN	s.	SENSITIVITY	Mechanio	cal Shock and	Vibration	
DESCRIPTION							
Various trar items.	isport	tation shock	and vibrat	tion stim	uli are imposo	ed on package	ed end
RATIONALE							
These tests environments	are of to o	designed to s demonstrate	simulate se container p	evereinduc Derformanc	ced shock and ce.	vibration	
APPARATUS							
Extensive sh Repetitive s Drop_hook_ar	aker hock	facility wi tester pp pad	th high and	d low temp	perature capal	biliti <mark>e</mark> s.	
None except	that	incident to	apparatus	operation	۱.		
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
2 end items bulk materia	or 11 pkg	gs. N	umerous				
SPECIAL REQUIT	REMEN	TS			_		
Itentify sam	nple i	items					
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			No	one			
VIOLET IV			No	one			
PARAMETER	_		RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Container me	chani	ical perform	ance		2	3	5
APPROXIMATE C	OST P	ER MATERIAL (R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$20,000 per	item					RANK 0	
These are co drop tests o demonstrate	ontair of an its i	ner tests ra unpackaged (invulnerabil	ther than d end item in ity.	classifica 1 various	ation tests. attitudes wo	Four or five uld serve to	e foot

NUMBER	1	EST				2.				
205		Crash Safety (40 foot drop)								
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE		PARAMET	ER(S)				
END ITEM	TRANS		SENSITI	VITY	Mechani	cal Shock				
DESCRIPTION			1							
Forth foot o	lrop te	est of pack	aged en	d it	ems.					
RATIONALE										
Demonstrates through seve	conta ere med	ainers abil chanical sh	ity to lock.	main	tain int	egrity and co	ntain produc	t		
APPARATUS										
Structure to	suspe	end package	d sampl	e an	d drop i	t from a heig	ht of 40 fee	t.		
INSTRUMENTATI	ON									
None except still documentary camera.										
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER O	TESTS	FOR	ALIDITY					
bulk materia packages	or 1	4						1		
SPECIAL REQUIR	REMENT	S								
Identify sam	nples									
TESTING EXPERI	ENCE			RES	ULTS		REPORT			
GREEN IV				No	ne					
VIOLET IV				NO	ne					
PARAMETER			F	RELAT	ABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL		
Container me	chanic	al norform	ance		0	2	3	5		
concarner me	channe	ai periori	ance		0	6	5			
APPROXIMATE C	OST PE	R MATERIAL	OR END I	TEM	TESTED					
\$900 per ite	em						RANK 0			
REMARKS										
This is a co normally lin dispersal of	ntaine nited f conte	er test; it to containe ents is con	is not ers for sidered	rev radi cat	elant to oactive astrophi	classificati materials whe c.	on. This te re loss or	st is		

NUMBER	т	EST					
301		Bulk Densit	y				
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		
Misc.	TRANS	& STORAGE	Property	Density			
A measured v density.	olume	of sample n	naterial is	weighed	to obtain t	he materials	bulk
Data can be "critical ma	used i ss"	n calculati	ng subsequ	ent dens [.]	ity related	factors such	as
PPARATUS							
Graduated cy	linder						
NSTRUMENTATI	ON						
Analytical b	alance	<u>+</u> 10 mg ac	curacy.				
AMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
100 m1		5					
Identify sam	ple	5					
ESTING EXPERI GREEN IV VIOLET IV	ENCE		.89 g .76 g	SULTS /CC /CC	E	REPORT A-FR-1DOX A-FR-1DOX	
ARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATI	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Density				0	2	3	5
PPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL C	R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$35 per mate	rial	•				RANK	Α
This is a la relate to ha	borato zards (ry test tha or classifi	t measures cation.	a mater	ial property	; it does not	

NUMBER	TEST				1		
302	Compatibil	ity (Reacti	vity wit	h Surround	ings)		
CATEGORY	APPLICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)			
Misc	STORAGE	Stability	Chemic	al Reactiv	ity		1
A 1-5 gram s then placed 5mm mercury.	ample is dried a in a constant te The test is the	nd then pla mperature b en continue	iced in a bath 90°C ed for a	glass hea and evacua minimum of	ting tube ated to a 48 hours	. The pressu	tube is re of
RATIONALE							
This test de materials in	termines the com which it comes	patibility in contact	of a pyr througho	otechnic m ut its life	ixture wi e cycle.	th othe	r
Constant tem Specially co Vacuum pump	perature bath nstructed sample	tube (comp	atibilit	y apparatu	5)		
Balance accu Temperature Vacuum gage	rate to 0.2 mill recorder	igrams					
SAMPLE SIZE 1 - 5 grams	NUMBER OF 1 test	tests for at each de	validity esired te	mperature			
Special Require prepare cons material, co contact mate	EMENTS Pre-weig tant temperature ntact material a rial in the capi	h sample ma bath, perf nd the comb llary.	iterial. form dete pination	Identify s rmination of sample i	sample ma of the sa naterial	iterial, mple and	
TESTING EXPERI	ENCE	RE	SULTS		REPOR	т	
GREENIV		No	one				
VIOLET IV		No	one				
PARAMETER		RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITAT	VE SCALA	BILITY	TOTAL
Chemical Rea	ctivity		3	2		2	7
APPROXIMATE CO	DST PER MATERIAL (R END ITEM	TESTED				
\$170 per mat	erial				RAN	, 1	
REMARKS							-
Direct compa possible. To test methods heat tests a traditional developer wh	rison of test va est method does include: therm nd the Abel heat materials are in o introduces a n	lues betwee include mor al stabilit test. Thi volved. It ovel materi	en differ re than o ty oven a s test i t will be al.	ent materi ne stabili nd tube me s probably of intere	als is no ty parame thods, 75 not desi st to the	t alway ter. S and 10 rable w design	s imilar O ^O C here er or

NUMBER	TE	ST						
303	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER	(s)			
Misc	Mfa. S	Storage	Property	Moistu	re Absornti	on		
DESCRIPTION	ing. c	, tor uge	. Toper of	1101000	ie nosorper			
Determine moisture absorptivity characteristics of pyrotechnics.								
	121							
Moisture has an important role in the formation of pyrotechnic mixes. Its role in sensitizing compositions must be known.								
APPARATUS								
Controlled e variations.	nvironn	ment. Desi	ccator and	Sulfuric	acid concen	tration		
INSTRUMENTAT	ION							
Analytic bal	ance							
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY				
10.0 gram		3						
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENTS		_					
Relative hum l density sa	midity of more than the more that we have a construction of the more that we have a construction of the more the more that we have a construction of the more that we	of 90%						
TESTING EXPER GREEN IV VIOLET IV	IENCE		8.46% 3.46% 26.1%	moisture moisture	absorbed q. absorbed q.	REPORT V. par. 3.1. V. par. 3.1.	3 3	
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY C	UANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL	
Moisture abs	orptior	1		0	2	2	4	
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL	R END ITEM	TESTED				
\$80 per mate	rial					RANK		
REMARKS Complex test having multiple interferrences including: Temperature, humidity, time. Actual use in determining hazard potential is questionable without assessing effect of moisture on the reaction.								

長

NUMBER	T	EST					
304		Moisture (Desiccatior	Method)			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER	(s)		
Misc.	Stor	age	Property	Moistu	re		
DESCRIPTION							
Determine mo	oisture	content o	f pyrotechr	nic materia	ls.		
RATIONALE							
While moisture has an important role in the functioning end items, its effect during manufacture could have adverse effects leading to potential hazards.							
APPARATUS							
Desiccator Oven							
INSTRUMENTAT	ION		····				
None							
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
10.0 gram		3 test	ts routinel	y performed	d.		
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENTS	5					
Identify sam	ple.						
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			.53%	by weight	q	.v. par. 3.1	.4
VIOLET IV			./0%	by weight	q	.v. par. 3.1	.4
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY O	UANTITATIV	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Moisture				0	2	2	4
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL C	R END ITEM	TESTED			
\$80 per mate	rial					RANK	
Questionable some other t Results are volatiles ar	benef est to suspec e prese	it in asses indicate r t with high ent.	ssing pyrot results fro ily hygrosc	echnics haz m loss or c opic materi	zards unle change in ial and in	ess combined moisture con valid if	with tent.

NUMBER	TEST					
305	Moisture	& Volatiles	(Vacuum Ove	en Method)		
CATEGORY	APPLICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER	(s)		
Misc	Storage	Property	% Moistur	re & Volat	iles	
DESCRIPTION						
Determine mo	isture and vola	tiles by vac	cuum oven to	echnique.		
Volatile sub this techniq	stances which ma ue.	ay be preser	it in pyrote	echnics wi	ll volatize b	У
APPARATUS						
Vacuum oven Desiccator						
INSTRUMENTATI	NO					
None.						
SAMPLE SIZE	NUMBER O	F TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
10 gram		3				
Special Require Identify'sam	ple.					
TESTING EXPER GREEN IV VIOLET IV	IENCE	.6219 .5249	sults 6 by weight 6 by weight	q q	веровт .v. par. 3.1. .v. par. 3.1.	5 5
PARAMETER		RELA	TABILITY C		E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Moisture and	Volatiles		0	2	2	4
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED						
\$85 per mate	rial				RANK]	_
Results obtained are unreliable when the sample is highly hygroscopic. This test by itself does not indicate hazards potential. It must be integrated with some other data to indicate the consequences of moisture and volatile content.						

NUMBER	TE	ST					
306		loisture	and Total V	olatiles	(Gas Chromat	ographic Meth	(bo
CATEGORY	APPLIC	BILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	ER(S)		
Misc	Stor	age	Property	Moistu	re and Volat	ile Content	
Moisture an the sample	d volat and ana	iles (eth lyzed by	yl alcohol a gas chrom	and dieth atograph.	yl ether) ar	re extracted f	rom
RATIONALE							
Moisture an potential h the materia	d volat azards l.	ile matte on the ba	r content d sis of the	eterminat amounts o	ions are use f moisture a	ed to evaluate and volatiles	in
APPARATUS							
Laboratory	apparat	us and re	agents.				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION						
Gas chromat and integra	ograph e tor.	equipped	with therma	l conduct	ivity detect	cor and record	ler
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER C	F TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
10 grams			1				
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENTS						
Identify sa	mple						
TESTING EXPER	RIENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			N	one			
VIOLET IV			N	one	1		
ARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIV	E SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Moisture an volatiles	d total			0	2	2	4
APPROXIMATE (OST PER	MATERIAL	OR END ITEM	TESTED			
\$180 per ma	terial					RANK 1	
REMARKS							
Only used w	hen vola	atiles ar	e suspected	of const	ituting a ha	azard.	

NUMBER	TE	ST					
401	7	5 ⁰ C Interr	national He	at Test			
CATEGORY	APPLICA	BILITY	TYPE	PARAMETI	ER(S)		
Bulk		STORAGE	Stability	1	Temperature		
DESCRIPTION							
A 10-gram sa sample after volatility.	ample is this e	subjected xposure is	d to an ele s observed	evated ter for signs	nperature for s of decomposi	48 hours. tion or	The
RATIONALE							
This test de	termine	s the them	rmal stabil	ity of a	given materia	1.	
APPARATUS							
Oven, regula	ated fro	m 50 ⁰ C - 4	100 ⁰ C.				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION						
Balance accu	urate to	0.2 milli	igrams.				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDITY			
10 grams		14	test 48 hou	Irs			
SPECIAL REQUI Pre-weigh sa manufacturer	ample, i 's name	dentify as and plant	s to: Samp t designati	ole design on, date	nation, lot nu sampled and c	umber, lot s late loaded.	ize,
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			No	one			
VIOLET IV			No	one			
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILITY	QUANTITATIVE	SCALABILITY	TOTAL
Heat				4	0	2	6
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL C	DR END ITEM	TESTED			
\$125 per mat	cerial					RANK 1	
REMARKS							
This is a "Go/No-Go" test, and the test results cannot stand alone. If signs of volatility or decomposition are noted additional tests should be performed. This test method only attempts to validate one parameter found in prolonged storage and sample size. The 75°C high temperature environment is universally accepted.							

				the second se	
NUMBER	T	EST			
402		100 ⁰ C Heat Test			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	St	torage	Stability	Temperature	
A sample i for 100 ho	s heate urs at	ed for two 48-hour 100°C.	periods at 100 ⁰ C.	It is also exposed	
This test some speci	determi fied pe	nes if the sample riod of time.	material retains	its properties during	
Oven, regu	lated f	from 50 ⁰ C - 200 ⁰ C.			
Balance aco Method för	on curate determ	to 0.2 milligrams ining proper tempe	erature.		
SAMPLE SIZENUMBER OF TESTS FOR VALIDITY 3 tests (2 at 48 hours) (1 at 100 hours)					
Pre-weigh s manufacture	sample, er date	identify as to: , end date sampled	Sample designatio 1.	n, lot number,	
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RESULTS	REPORT	
GREEN IV			None None		
PARAMETER		F	RELATABILITY	ATIVE+ SCALABILITY = TOTAL	-
Heat			2	0 2	4
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL OR END IT	EM TESTED		
\$155 per ma	aterial			RANK	
REMARKS This test i Sample size are require to validate is not repr at artifici	s a "G e is to ed if a e one p resenta al agin	o/No Go" test, and o small to put muc "no Go" is the re arameter found in tive of the actual ng.	the test results weight in resul sult. This test prolonged storage environment; at	cannot stand alone. ts. Additional tests method only attempts . The 100°C temperature best, it is an attempt	8

NUMBER		TEST				
403		Explosion Temp	erature Test			
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	PARAMET	rer(s)	
Bulk	Trans	. & Storage	Sensitivity	Hea	it	
A sample s tamping. Wood's met time tempe <u>explosion</u> RATIONALE This test detonate w	pecime This 1 al bat rature in 5 s detern hen he	en is placed in a oaded shell is t th. The time req e-curve and the t seconds is extrap nines the tempera ald at that tempe	gilding metal hen immersed to uired for deton ime-temperature olated. ture at which t rature for a sp	shell and is a fixed dept ation is note required to he specimen w ecified lengt	compacted by th in a molten ed and plotted on cause flashing o will flash or th of time.	n a or
ADDADATUS						
Electric F Molten Woo	urnace d's Me	tal				
INSTRUMENTAT	ON					
Pyrometer Thermocoup Timer	le	, î				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS	FOR VALIDITY			
20 mg.		Sufficient num	ber times to va	lidate temper	ature-time curve	2.
Special Requi Sample mus Temperatur test. Sam	t be s e of t ple sp	creened through he specimen samp becimen is then t	a No. 50 sieve. le must be stab amped in the me	Weighing of ilized at 25 tal shells.	sample material <u>+</u> 5°C prior to	1.
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RESULTS	F	EPORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	QUANTATI VE+ SC	ALABILITYSTOTAL	
Heat			2	1	1 4	4
APPROXIMATE C \$175 per m REMARKS	ost pe ateria	R MATERIAL OR END	ITEM TESTED		RANK	_
Data obtai Data depen melting po is inadequ sample size	ned by dent u int of ate wh e.	indirect method pon explosion or Wood's metal. S en compared to D	after plotting deflagration a Similar tests i TA or ITA parti	temperature nd maximum te nclude Hot Ba cularly in vi	versus time. mperature is the r Test. This te ew of the small	est

	_					1000
NUMBER	T	ST				
404		lest Hot Bar	lest			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	R(S)	
Bulk	Trans.	& Storage	Sensitivity	Heat		
DESCRIPTION				1		
A sample and then plotted on	specimen required h a time	is dropped on for detonating -temperature c	to a hot bar or h g, deflagration on urve.	not plate of r marked deco	known temp mposition	erature is
RATIONALE						
This test detonate w	determi when hel	nes the temper d at that temp	ature at which the erature for a spec	e specimen wi cified length	ll flash o of time.	r
APPARATUS						
Hot bar of Balance ad	r hot pl ccurate	ate to .01 grams.				
INSTRUMENTA	TION					-
Pyrometer Thermocoup Timer	ble					
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TEST	S FOR VALIDITY			
20 mg.		Sufficient nur curve.	mber of tests to w	alidate time	-temperatu	re
Special Requi Sample mus Temperatur test.	t be sc t of th	reened through e specimen samp	a No. 50 sieve, w ble must be stabil	eighing of sa ized at 25 <u>+</u>	mple mate 5 °C prio	rial. r to
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		RESULTS	RE	PORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	ANTATI VE+SCAL	ABILITY=TO	DTAL
Heat			2	1	1	4
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR EN	DITEM TESTED			
\$185 per n	naterial			1	RANK]	
REMARKS						
Test is a obtained b quick meth material.	variati y a dir od for This t	on of the Wood' ect measurement determining the est is inadequa	s metal explosion of time and temp magnitude of a r te when compared	temperature erature. Thi eaction for a to DTA or ITA	test. Dat s test is in unknown l.	ta are a

NUMBER	TE	ST				
405		Impact Sensit	ivity Test (Burea	u of Mines Ap	paratus)	
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETE	R(S)	
Bulk	Trans.	& Storage	Sensitivity	Impac	t	
DESCRIPTION						
A 20 mg sa determined	mple is height	subjected to •	impact from a fal	ling weight o	f a pre-	
RATIONALE			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
This test minimum dr known drop	determi cop heig height	nes the sensit ht at which on as a result o	ivity of a pyrote e reaction occurs f mechanical shoc	chnic mixture out of 10 tr k caused by in	by obtain ials from a npact.	ing the a
APPARATUS						
Bureau of	Mines I	mpact Apparatu	S			
INSTRUMENTAT	ION					
None requi force of t	red. S he impa	train gage, lo ct and rebound	ad cell, or Piezo of the falling w	electric cryst eight is optic	tal to measonal.	sure
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TEST	TS FOR VALIDITY			
20 mg.		10 tests at	each drop height	•		
SPECIAL REQUI Sieving of stabilized identify s temperatur	the sal to 25 ⁰ ample m e and h	mple through 50 <u>+</u> 5 °C prior aterial. Test umidity condit	0 mesh screen. To to test. Weighin must be performe ions.	emperature of g of sample to d under contro	the sample 20 mg siz 211ed	2 Zes,
GREEN IV	TENCE		RESULTS	RÉ	PORT	
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	UANTATI VE+SCAI	ABILITY = TO	TAL
Impact			3	2	1	6
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR EN	DITEM TESTED			
\$170 per m	aterial			į	RANK]	
REMARKS						
This test Sample siz apparatus PA apparat consist of liquid. A device; de	establis e too sr do not o us or Br a defor lso grea vice rec	shed the minimu mall for good s correlate with ureau of Explose rmable cup and ater drop heigh quires a substa	um energy required statistical data. those obtained of sives apparatus. may be directly of its are obtainable antial concrete re	d to initiate Data obtaine n other test a Sample holder used without m e as compared est.	a given ma d with thi pparatus s in the ap odificatio to the B o	aterial is such as oparatus on for of E

NUMBER	Т	ST			
406	10	Impact Sensi	tivity (Picatinny	Arsenal Apparatus	5)
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	Trans.	& Storage	Sensitivity	Impact	
DESCRIPTION				-	
A 10 - 30 determine	mg samp d height	le is subjecto	ed to impact from	a falling weight	of a pre-
This test the minim from a kn	determi um drop own drop	nes the sensi height at which height as the	tivity of a pyrote ch five of ten rea e result of mechan	chnic mixture by ctions occur in t ical shock caused	obtaining cen trials l by impact.
APPARATUS					
Picatinny	Arsenal	Impact Appara	atus.		
None required the force	ired. S of the	train gage, lo impact and reb	oad cell, or Piezo bound of the falli	electric crystal ng weight is opti	to measure onal.
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TES	TS FOR VALIDITY		
Varies - must be f	the cup	10 tests at	t each drop height	•	
SPECIAL REQU	IREMENTS				
Sieving o material	f sample stabiliz	material through the set of the	ough 50 mesh scree OC prior to test.	n. Temperature o Weigh of sample	f the sample material.
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		RESULTS	REPORT	r
GREEN IV			None		
VIOLET IV			None		
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	UANTATI VE+SCALABI	LITY = TOTAL
Impact			3	2 1	6
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR E	ND ITEM TESTED		T.
\$170 per r	naterial			RANK	. 1
EMARKS					
This test due to the initiation results do	method (tapered at the not co	differs from t d sample cup. 50% value. B rrelate with t	the BM and BE appa This test establ ecause of the var hose obtained on a	ratus; friction i ishes the energy iable sample size any other test ap	s introduced required for test paratus.

NUMBER	TE	ST				
407	- 1	Friction Pende	ulum Test			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	PARAME	TER(S)	
Bulk	Transp	ortation	Sensitivity	Frid	tion	
DESCRIPTION						
A sample shoe swin	of pyrot ging as	echnic mixture a pendulum at f	is exposed to th the end of a long	e action of steel rod.	steel o	r fiber
RATIONALE The result of material experience order of s operation	is test frictio is descr e, i.e., severity where p	determines the nal forces upor ibed quantitati the most energe or reaction, s ersonnel are wa	sensitivity of a the sample mate vely to indicate getic reaction is snaps, cracks and alking over dust	pyrotechni rial. The its reacti an explosi unaffectec covered flo	c mixture behavior on to th on and in l. Simula	e as a of the is n decreasin ate
Apparatus	Fric	tion pendulum 1	test apparatus.			
INSTRUMENTAT	TION					
None requ	ired.					
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TEST	S FOR VALIDITY			
7 gram		1 - 10 tr	rials			
Special Regul Laboratory preparation 50 - 100 m	v test con incluments	onditions with des stabilizing ve.	controlled tempe sample temperat	rature and ure to 25 <u>+</u>	humidity. 5 ⁰ C siev	. Sample ving throug
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	UANTATI VE+ S	CALABILIT	Y= TOTAL
Friction			2	0	1	3
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR END	TEM TESTED			
\$320 per n	naterial				RANK	1
REMARKS Data of te other type fineness o Friction s transporta	ests per e fricti of the s stimuli ation an	formed on this on tests. Vari ample material do not represen d storage.	apparatus are pl ances in data ar and wear of eith t a significant	entiful but e obtainabl er the stee initiation	do not o e because l or fibe hazard du	correlate e of the er shoe. uring

	-			10211		
NUMBER	TE	ST				
408		Friction Sens	sitivity Test			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	BILITY	TYPE	PARA	METER(S)	
Bulk	Tran	sportation	Sensitivity	F	riction	
DESCRIPTION						
A 100 mg s preload.	ample i Impact	s subject to f energy supplie	friction between ed by a pendulum	a sliding weight.	bar and a	fixed
RATIONALE						
This test detonation	determin of a ma	nes the fricti aterial.	onal energy requ	ired to ca	use decomp	osition or
APPARATUS						
Apparatus (describe	ed in EA-FR-4D	11			
Strain gage to measure	on for ma the ve	easuring prelo locity of the	ad on sample and plate.	a linear	velocity t	ransducer
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TES	TS FOR VALIDITY		- U	
100 mg.		10 tests a	t each energy le	vel.		
Special Requir Sample scre under conti	ened to colled to	o microns. Sa temperature an	mple dryed 24 ho d humidity condi	urs at 75 ⁰ tions.	C. Test pe	erformed
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			No Reaction	n	EA-FR-4D11	E
VIOLET IV			No Reaction	n	EA-FR-4D1	1
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	QUANTATIVE	SCALABILIT	Y=TOTAL
Friction			2	2	ī	5
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL OR EN	O ITEM TESTED			
\$380 per te	st				RANK	
REMARKS						
Tests are d decompompos different f pressure. state; this Friction st significant	lesigned ition c rom oth Frictic appara imuli d initia	to measure t or explosive r er friction d n testing mus tus is unprov uring transpo tion hazard.	he frictional ene eaction. This ap evices because of t be regarded as en and of question rtation or storag	ergy requin oparatus is f the prelo being in a onable val ge does not	red to caus s significa bading of s a developme idity at th t represent	se a antly static ental nis time. t a

NUMBER		TEST					
409		Inpingement R	eactio	n Test			
CATEGORY	APP	LICABILITY	TY	PE		PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	I T	ransportation	S	ensitivity	,	Impact/Frict	ion
DESCRIPTION							
A 100 mg s accelerat target.	ampl ion o	e is subjected to f the sample agai	impac nst a	t and fric variable a	ction b angle a	y pneumatic nd variable mat	terial
This test pyrotechn detonation	will ic ma n may	determine the sa terials and the v occur from induc	fe vel velocit e mech	ocity rang y range ab anical fri	ge for bove wh iction	pneumatic trans ich decomposit or impact.	sport of ion or
APPARATUS							
Apparatus	desc	ribed in EA-FR-4D	11				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION				d		
Optical se	ensor	s tied to counter	for m	easuring v	velocit	У.	
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TES	TS FOR	VALIDITY			
10 tests at each predetermined velocity. N ₁ Nn					.Nn		
Special Requi Sieving sa environmen observatio	ample t ma	s to 297 microns. intained a 50-60% impact in darken	Samp RH and ed room	les dryed d temperat	22 hou ure 70	rs at 75 ⁰ C. Te -75 ⁰ F. Visual	est area
TESTING EXPE	RIENC	E	RE	JULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			No	reaction a	t 300	ft/sec. EA-FR-	-4D11
VIOLET IV			No	reaction a	at 300	ft/sec. EA-FR-	4D11
PARAMETER			REL	ATABILITY+	QUANTA	TIVE+SCALABILIT	Y = TOTAL
Impact/Fr	ctio	n		1	2	1	4
APPROXIMATE	COST	PER MATERIAL OR EN	DITEM	TESTED			
\$380 per n	nater	ial				RANK	
To transpo The veloci test will on impact material i pipe. The the point indicator	ort g ty i prov and mpac val of b at b	ranular materials s based on the ma ide a measurement above which decom ts the receiving idity of scaling eing invalid. Th est. This test is	a ceri terial of the positio vessel pneumat is test not re	tain criti density a velocity on or deto or a chan tic transf t must be elevant to	cal ve ind oth below mation ge in fer pro regard trans	locity must be er physical fac which no react may result whe direction of th cesses is quest ed as a qualita portation or st	maintained ctors. Thi cion occurs on the de delivery cionable to ative corage.
Appendix A				=0			

NUMBER	T	ST					
410	- 10°	Abel Heat	Test (KI Tes	+) -			
	_	Aber neue	1030 (KI 163				
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE		PARAMET	ER(S)	
Bulk	Sto	rage	Stab	ility	Heat		
DESCRIPTION							
A small ar determinat coloration	nount of tion is n on a s	pyrotechnic made by whic tarch-iodide	c mixture is ch the gases e paper.	heated t liberate	to 160 ⁰ F for ed will prod	10 minu uce a st	tes. A andard
RATIONALE				•			
A quick te propellant	est meth t or exp	od for demon losive mater	nstrating the rial of impu	e absence rities ca	e from the p ausing low t	yrotechn hermal s	ic, tability.
Test tubes Oil bath Starch-ioc	ide pap	er strips					
INSTRUMENTAT	ION						
Temperatur	e measu	rement of oi	11 bath.				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF T	ESTS FOR VAL	DITY			
1-10 grams		1 - 5					
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENTS						
Pre-weigh	sample,	sample ider	tification				
TESTING EXPEN	RIENCE		RESUL	rs	R	EPORT	
GREEN IV			None				
VIOLET IV			None				
PARAMETER			RELATA	BILITY	ANTATI VE+ SC	ALABILITY	= TOTAL
Heat			2	Ļ	1	2	7
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR	END ITEM TES	TED		ļ	
\$80 per ma	terial					RANK 1	
REMARKS							
This test and assure the freedo thermal st failed to infrequent	is limit s the co m from o ability pass a f ly found	ted to those completeness contaminatio . It is a g thermal stab d in pyrotec	materials t of the purif n after manu ood test to ility test. hnic materia	hat are ication facturin perform Nitrate ls.	nitrated or during manu g which mig on a materia d organic co	Janic cor Facturing It cause al which Ompounds	mpounds g and low has are

NUMBER	T	ST					
411		Isothermal	Analysi	S			
					_		
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	Т	YPE		PARAMETER(S)	
BUIK	Stor	age	50	ensitiv	ity	Temperature	
Description Determine condition	e effect is of nea	on pyrotech r ignition	nnic mater temperati	rials at ures.	t prolong	ged exposure to	temperature
Thermal s temperatu	tability Ire may b	of sample e different	at eleva t than at	ted temp normal	peratures elevated	s approaching ig d storage temper	nition atures.
APPARATUS Fischer M Isotherma	lodel 200 1 temper	Differenti ature regul	ial Therma lator for	al Analy furnace	zer (DT/	4)	
INSTRUMENTA	TION						
Dual trac	e strip	chart recor	rder.				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF	TESTS FOR	VALIDIT	Y		
50-100 mg		3					
Operate D	TA in no	n-programme	ed mode.				
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		Decompo	sults osed at	169.25 ⁰ (REPORT Q.V. par.	3.1.6
VIOLET IV			Decompo	osed at	169.25°(q.v. par.	3.1.6
PARAMETER			REI	LATABILI	TY+QUANT	TATI VE+ SCALABILIT	TY = TOTAL
Temperatu	re			3	2	3	8
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL O	R END ITEM	TESTER)		
\$190 per	material					RANK	1
REMARKS							
This test is an imp of heatin exotherna technique decompose	offers rovement g in thi l behavi cannot s at a t	questionabl over stand s ITA test or as is in produce mea emperature	e benefit lard therm is not a the DTA ningful c below its	ts in as mal stab factor test, N data whe igniti	ssessing ility te in decer lumber ll n applie on tempe	pyrotechnic rea est in TB700-2. ming a material 12. The isother ed to a material erature.	ctivity but The rate s mal analysi that

NUMBER	Т	EST				and the second se	$p = \gamma_{1}$
412		Hantmann Du	et Concit	i wi ta			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYP	E		PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	Trans	nortation	Son	citiv	÷+.,	Heat and Outer	th England
DESCRIPTION	[IT dits	porcación	[3en	SILIV	ΙLΥ	neat and outp	
An airborr Results an	ne suspe re relat	ension of sam ted to a stan	ple mater dard mater	ial i rial.	s ignited	l in a Hartmann a	apparatus.
RATIONALE					•		
Airborne s initiation	uspensi sensit	ons may be p ivities and	resent in output may	a mai (con:	nufacturi stitute h	ng environment. azards.	Their
APPARATUS							
Bureau of Ignition s	Mines H ources	lartmann appa	ratus and	asso	ciated eq	uipment.	
INSTRUMENTAT	ION						
Dynamic pr	essure	recording					
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TE	STS FOR V		Y		
1-2 grams		Approxim	mately 80				
special requi	ample	3					
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RESI	LTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV VIOLET IV		Explosibili Explosibili	ty Index ty Index	.1 .1	(Weak) (Weak)	EA-FR-100) EA-FR-100>	(
PARAMETER			RELA	TABILI	TY+QUANT	ATI VE+SCALABILIT	Y=TOTAL
Heat				2	2	2	6
APPROXIMATE (COST PER	MATERIAL OR	END ITEM 1	ESTER)		
\$390 per m	aterial					RANK]	
REMARKS							
Good test dense to m cannot ach process. environmen	for fue ake and ieve co This te tal con	l components, maintain uni ncentrations st is not rep ditions.	, but pyrc form susp and condi presentati	techr ensic tions ve of	nic mix p ns. Con typical transpo	articles tend to ventional Hartma of pneumatic tr rtation or stora	be too nn apparat ansfer ge

NUMBER	т	ST					
413	Lar	ge Scale Parr B	omb	38 cu.ft.	. Detor	nation Chamber	•
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TY	PE		PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	Trans	. & Storage	0	utput		Pressure Temp	erature
A sample o Pressure a	f mater nd temp	ial is initiate perature are rec	d in orded	a vessel to refle	of lan ect ene	rge volume (38 ergy output.	cu. ft.).
RATIONALE	-						
Rapid pres can be rej	sure ar ected b	d temperature r by the vessel.	ises Large	can be me samples	are mo	d before signi ore	ficant heat
APPARATUS							
Apparatus	describ	ed in EA-FR-4D1	1				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION						
Temperatur	e and p	ressure recorde	rs				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS	FOR	VALIDITY			
20-50 gram	S	3					
Special Requi Identify s Sample mus	ample t react	rapidly					
TESTING EXPER	IENCE		RE	SULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			1.5	psig		EA-FR-4	D11
VIOLET IV			2.2	psig		EA-FK-4	DIT
PARAMETER			REL	ATABILITY	POUANT	ATIVE+SCALABIL	ITY = TOTAL
Output tem	peratur	e and pressure		2	2	2	6
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL OR END	ITEM	TESTED			
\$380 per m	aterial				•	RANK	1
REMARKS	1						
Pyrotechni slowly to general te analysis.	cs, in obtain sting s	general, and sm good results. uch as function	oke m Vesse ing a	ixes, in l affords nd end it	partic a goo em and	ular, react r d closed cham l sampling pro	ather too ber for ducts for

NUMBER	T	ST				
414	1.1	Carrier Mediu	um Test			
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE		PARAMETER(S)	
Misc	Man	ufacturing	Proper	ty	Triboelectrific	ation
Test cond result fro atmosphere	ucted in om tribo e within	blender to de electrificatio the blender.	etermine the on between p	electros yrotechni	tatic potentials c components and	that the
RATIONALE			X	•		
It is pos to electri of less a	sible th ostatic ctive me	at some carrie charge generat dia.	er media may tion. Hazar	be more ds can be	or less suscepti reduced by the	ble than selection
APPARATUS						
Modified supplies	100 cubi and cont	c inch capacit rols.	ty Jet Airmi	x blender	and associated	pneumatic
INSTRUMENTA	TION					
Electrome	ter					
SAMPLE SIZE 400 gm		NUMBER OF TES	TS FOR VALID	ΤY		
Special Require Temperatur Identify S	re and h sample	umidity contro	ol at labora	tory envi	ronment	
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			RELATABL	ITY+QUANT	ATIVE+SCALABILIT	Y = TOTAL
Triboelect	trificat	ion	3	2	2	7
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR EN	ID ITEM TEST	D		
\$240 per r	material				RANK	1
This is a It should contemplat	very us be mand ted for	eful method fo atory whenever pneumatic proc	or obtaining a carrier cessing.	basic tr nedium oth	iboelectrificati ner than air is	on data.

415	TE	For Full S	and Blending Se Scale Processin	q <mark>uence</mark> Te: g	st	
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE	P	ARAMETER(S)	
Misc	Man	ufacturing	Property	T	riboelectrifi	cation
DESCRIPTION						
Components in combina relative t	of a p tion. riboele	yrotechnic mix Electrostatic ctrification e	cture are cycle charge generat effects as a fu	d in a blo ion is mean nction of	ender individ asured to det blending seq	ually and ermine uence.
Components of electro	should static	be mixed in s potentials to	equences that reduce attenda	result in nt hazards	the minimum s of discharg	generation e.
Modified 1 supply and	00 cubi contro	c inch capacit ls.	y Jet Airmix b	lender and	d associated	pneumatic
Electromet	er le					
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TES	TS FOR VALIDITY			
100-500 gr	ams	3			54	
Temperatur Identify s	e and h ample	umidity contro	l at laborator	y environn	nent	
FESTING EXPER	RIENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			none			
ARAMETER			RELATABILIT		VE+ SCALABILIT	Y= TOTAL
Triboelect	rificat	ion	3	2	3	8
APPROXIMATE (COST PER	MATERIAL OR EN	ND ITEM TESTED			
\$240 per m	aterial				RANK	1

NUMBER	Т	ST					
416		Mass Effects Tes	t		1		
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE Output	PARA	METER(S)		
Bulk	Trans	. & Storage	Sensitivit	y Hydr Tran	odynamic Sho sition	ck and	
A 36 inch whether the detonation	diamete e mater in lar	r sample is subje ial is sensitive ge masses and dia	cted to a plan to shock init meters.	ne shock w iation and	ave to detern transition	nine to	
RATIONALE			·····				
Pyrotechnics are generally insensitive at small diameters; it is possible that large masses and diameters are sensitive. This test demonstrates the hazard (or lack thereof) explosive characteristics at full scale.							
Shock place Sample hold	Shock place generator Sample holder and support						
INSTRUMENTAT	ON						
Blast instrumentation Velocity probes							
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS F	OR VALIDITY				
500 pounds		3					
Special Require Consolidat Identify sa	ion of ample.	sample to simulate	e a full vesse	2].			
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RESULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV		1	lone		See Remarks		
VIOLET IV		1	lone		See Remarks		
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	UANTATI VE+	SCALABILITYS	TOTAL	
Hydrodynami and transit	ic shoc tion	k sensitivity	2	2	3	7	
APPROXIMATE C	OST PER	MATERIAL OR END IT	EM TESTED				
\$720 per sa	ample				RANK 0		
REMARKS							
This test, confidence. material is critical di A project i and Violet	since This sensi ameter s curro Smoke I	it is performed at test at once prov tive to hydrodynam at 36 inches or l ently underway to Mix IV; results wi	: full scale, vides determin nic shock, whe ess and equiv perform this 11 be publish	inspires t ations of ther the m valency bas test on G and in EA-F	the highest p whether the material has ded on a larg reen Smoke Mi R-4D91.	a mass. x IV	

NUMBER	TE	ST				
417		Thermal Ignitio	on Test			
417		inernar zynrore				
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	Output	Energ	gy (Airblast)	
Bulk	Tran	s. & Storage	Sensitivity	Trans	sition	
Full scale whether the whether the scale whether	e quanti ne react ne energ	ty of material ion will commur y output is sub	is stimulated b nicate and trans fficient to rupt	y an ignit ition∂to d ure the co	tor to determ detonation an ontainment ve	ine d ssel.
RATIONALE			•			
This test full scal	is inte e quanti	nded to demonst ties regardless	trate the hazard s of initiation	s attender source.	nt to initiat	ion of
APPARATUS						
Full scal	e contai	nment vessel.				
INSTRUMENTAT	ION	······································				
Blast mea Heat Flux	surement	: system				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TEST	S FOR VALIDITY			
100-2000	pounds	1				
SPECIAL REQUI	REMENTS					_
Identify	sample n	naterial				
TESTING EXPE	RIENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			None		See Remarks	
VIOLET IV			None		See Reliderks	
PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	QUANTATI VE	+SCALABILITY=	TOTAL
Transitio	n and er	nergy output	3	2	3	8
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR END	TEM TESTED			
\$920 per	sample				RANK	
REMARKS						
This test confidence enhanced currently Smoke Mix	is per e in it: by the underwa IV; re:	formed on full- s results. The addition of the ay to perform t sults will be p	scale thus inspi utility of the rmal output meas his test on Gree ublished in EA-F	iring the test woul surements. en Smoke M FR-4D91.	highest possi d be greatly A project i lix IV and Vic	ble s olet

				1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
NUMBER	TEST			
418	Full-Scale Ble	ending Test		
CATEGORY APP	LICABILITY	TYPE	PARAMETER(S)	
Bulk	Manufacturing	Property	Triboelectrifi	cation
DESCRIPTION				1
DESCRIPTION				
The test consi	sts of full_scale	operation of blog	ding aquipmont	
	sts of full scale	operación or prei	iding equipment.	
RATIONALE				
It is desired	to determine the h	azarde accociator	luith full coole b	londina a C
a material wit	h respect to the a	eneration of elec	trostatic charges	rending or
			on of our of on an ges.	
APPARATUS				
Full scale ble	nding equipment or	simulator.		
INSTRUMENTATION				
Electrometer				
SAMPLE SIZE	NUMBER OF TEST	S FOR VALIDITY		
100-2000 pound	2			
	5 6			
Idontify compl	o matorial			
ruencity salipt				
			and the second second second	
TESTING EXPERIENC	ε	RESULTS	REPORT	
GREEN IV		None		
VIOLET IV		None		
PARAMETER		RELATABILITY	ANTATI VE+ SCALABILIT	Y = TOTAL
Triboelectrifi	cation	1	2 3	6
APPROXIMATE COST	PER MATERIAL OR END	ITEM TESTED		
£0.00				
\$920 per sample	2		RANK ()
REMARKS				
That this test	is a full-scale te	est makes it unqu	estionably represen	ntative of
actual condition	ons. The primary of	drawback with thi	s test is the uncer	rtainty
of the electros	static measurements	s obtained. The	development of adec	quate
while this and	neasuring devices a	and techniques is	eagerly awaited.	Mean-
to perform this	s test on Green Sm	available. A proke Mix IV and Vi	olet Smoke Mix IV.	under way
will be publish	ned in EA-FR-4D91.	and the area vi	oree onore MIX IV;	i courto

NUMBER	T	EST				
419		End Item Electr	ostatic Sensi	itivity		
110				i civi cy		
CATEGORY	APPLIC	ABILITY	TYPE		PARAMETER(S)	
End Item	Tra	insportation	Sensitivit	ty	Electrical Sp	park
DESCRIPTION						
The end it energy (50 functionin	em is s joules g of th	ubjected to an e) to determine w e munition.	lectrical spa hether that s	ark disc stimulus	harge of very h will result in	nigh N
RATIONALE						
The energy than expec the round	level ted in in test	used for this te practice (except implies no func	st is several for a lightr tion in pract	l orders ning str tice.	of magnitude h ike). No funct	igher tion of
APPARATUS High volta	ige powe	er supply, capaci	tor bank and	control	circuitry.	
INSTRUMENTAT	10N					
10,000 vdc	voltme	ter				
SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS	FOR VALIDITY			
9 end item rounds	9 end item rounds 9 (3 tests at each of three locations of the item)					cem)
Identify s	ample r	ounds				
TESTING EXPER	RIENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
GREEN IV			None			
VIOLET IV			None			
PARAMETER			DEL ATADILITY	LOUANTA	TIVELOCALABILIT	V- TOTAL
Electrical	spark	sensitivity]	2	3	6
APPROXIMATE	COST PER	MATERIAL OR END	TEM TESTED			
\$100 per m	aterial					
DEMARKS				-	RANK	
This is an valid as l electrosta than 50 jo would requ	indire ong as tic sen ules. ire an	ct test, but is the end item doe sitivity at an e An end item with altered procedur	nevertheless s not functio nd item is of an electrost e and more cr	a good on. The no con catic se vitical	test. This tes magnitude of cern if it is g nsitivity below evaluation.	t is greater 50 joules

NUMBER	T	TEST					
420		Transportation S	imulation	Test			
CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	1000	PARAMETER(S)		
End Item	Т	ransportation	Output		Propalation		
A number o simulating A single i	f end the tem i	items containers a carrier with respec s functioned normal	re placed t to burs ly or by a	in a sca t pressur a J-2 bla	lled-down chamber re and loading den sting cap.	sity.	
RATIONALE			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
This test propagate in a typic	This test demonstrates whether the functioning of a donor round will propagate or transition to detonation under conditions of confinement found in a typical carrier.						
APPARATUS							
Simulated	carri	er					
INSTRUMENTATI	ON						
Internal pr Motion pic	Internal pressure and temperature airblast instrumentation Motion picture						
Approx. 8	cu. fi	NUMBER OF TESTS F	OR VALIDIT	Y			
SPECIAL REQUI	REMEN	TS					
Identify sa	ample	rounds					
TESTING EXPER	ENCE		RESULTS		REPORT		
GREEN IV		h	lone				
VIOLET IV		P	lone				
PARAMETER			RELATABILI	TY+QUANT	ATIVE+SCALABILITY:	TOTAL	
Propagation	1		3	2	2	7	
APPROXIMATE C	OST PI	ER MATERIAL OR END IT	EM TESTED)			
\$420 per it	cem				RANK]		
This test s test is in validated. carrier per of this tes	erves a dev Resu forma t met	to evaluate the ef relopmental stage, a lts, to date are in nce parameters shou hod.	fects of and has no conclusiv ld be dev	confinem t adequa e. Stan eloped t	ent by a carrier. tely been evaluate dardized procedure o provide developr	The ed and es and ment	
CLASSIFICATION TEST METHOD SUMMARY

NUMBER TEST 421 Modified Detonation Test B CATEGORY APPLICABILITY TYPE PARAMETER(S) End Item Trans. & Storage Output Propagation DESCRIPTION This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPRAMATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTARY Storage or tests FON VALIDITY Approx. 6 Cut. ft. depending on pkg. Five or until propagation occurs. Size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE SAGO per item None Propagation 3 2 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item None Sago peritem Nond 1							
421 Modified Detonation Test B CATEGORY APPRICABLLITY TYPE Propagation Description Trans. & Storage Output Propagation Description This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. RATIONALE This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPRANATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INNERED OF TEST FOR VALUETY Approx. 6 cu. ft. dometer or tests FOR VALUETY Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. Five or until propagation occurs. size NUMBER or tests FOR VALUETY Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. Testing EXPERIENCE RESULTS REFORT GREEN IV None VIOLET IV None Propagation 3 2 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1	NUMBER	1	EST				
CATEGORY APPLICABILITY TYPE PARAMETER(S) DESCRIPTION This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. This test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. RATIONALE, This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPARATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture Documentary still and motion picture NUMBER OF TEST FOR VALIDITY Approx. 6 cu. ft. Five or until propagation occurs. Size Size Size NUMBER OF TEST FOR VALIDITY Mone PARAMETER RESULTS REPORT VIOLET IV None VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABULITY FULANTATIVE+SCALABULITY = TOTAL Propagation 3 2 8	421		Modified Detonat	ion Test B			
End Item Trans. & Storage Output Propagation Descention This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. RATIONALE This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPAMATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture Documentary still and motion picture Nummer or rests POR VALIDITY Approx. 6 cu. ft. Five or until propagation occurs. size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. Propagation 3 2 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item \$300 per item Renor fifthe stic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is performed if the standard detonation T	CATEGORY	APPLI	CABILITY	TYPE	P	ARAMETER(S)	
Description This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. RATIONALE This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. Appendentus Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE REPORT OREENTING EXPERIENCE REPORT GREENTY None VIOLETIV None VIOLETIV None S300 per item RELATABILITY+DUANTATIVE+SCALABILITY=TOTAL Propagation 3 2 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR ENDITEM TESTED \$300 per item Relatability+buantation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the fun	End Item	Tran	s. & Storage	Output		Propagation	
This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test is performed on three or more end item containers placed adjacent to each other. APTONALE This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPENATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. Five or until propagation occurs. Size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. PARAMETER Propagation Sample field mitter None PARAMETER Propagation Sample field material or END ITEM TESTED Sample field field field or conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	DESCRIPTION						
PARTIONALE This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPARATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. gepending on pkg. Size Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. Testing EXPERIENCE PREMAINSE Propagation 3 Approximate cost per material or end item tested \$300 per item Relatability fouantative scalability total PREMAINSE Remainer This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	This test experiment performed other.	is con al or on thr	ducted on pyrotechn standard storage an ee or more end iten	nic end iten nd shipping n containers	ns which containe placed	are packaged i rs. The test adjacent to ea	n is ich
This test determines whether functioning of a donor round in a donor container propagates to an acceptor container. The modification consists of arranging the acceptor containers so that they are exposed to the maximum output of the donor. APPARATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. Size SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE GREEN IV VIOLET IV None APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RELATABILITY + OWANTATIVE + SCALABILITYS TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	RATIONALE						
APPARATUS Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size SpeciAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE GREEN IV Violet IV None Volet IV None Propagation 3 2 \$300 per item REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	This test container arranging output of	determ propag the ac the do	ines whether funct ates to an acceptor ceptor containers s nor.	ioning of a r container. so that they	donor ro The mo are exp	und in a donor dification cor osed to the ma	sists <mark>o</mark> f ximum
Open field test employing three or more loaded containers. Device for initiating normal function of donor end item or J-2 blasting cap. INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. Size SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE GREEN IV VIOLET IV None PRAMMETER RELATABLLITY FOUNTATIVE+SCALABILITY = TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8300 per item RENK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	APPARATUS					<u> </u>	
INSTRUMENTATION Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture sample size Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. Size Secial Regurements Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE GREEN IV VIOLET IV None Testing experience PARAMETER Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	Open field initiating	test norma	employing three or l function of donom	more loaded r end item d	d contain or J-2 bl	ers. Device f asting cap.	for
Blast measurement Heat Flux Documentary still and motion picture SAMPLE SIZE Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE GREEN IV VIOLET IV PARAMETER Propagation 3 2 Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution None None Propagation 3 2 Solution So	INSTRUMENTAT	ION					_
SAMPLE SIZE NUMBER OF TESTS FOR VALIDITY Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size Five or until propagation occurs. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. Image: Strain	Blast meas Heat Flux Documentar	uremen v stil	t l and motion pictu	re			
Approx. 6 cu. ft. depending on pkg. size Five or until propagation occurs. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE RESULTS GREEN IV None VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABILITY+QUANTATIVE+SCALABILITY=TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKE This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	SAMPLE SIZE		NUMBER OF TESTS F	OR VALIDITY			
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS Sample identificatio Container rupture in previous A or B test. TESTING EXPERIENCE RESULTS GREEN IV None VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABILITY+QUANTATIVE+SCALABILITY=TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	Approx. 6 depending size	cu. ft on pkg	. Five or until p	ropagation o	occurs.		
TESTING EXPERIENCE RESULTS REPORT GREEN IV None VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABILITY+QUANTATIVE+SCALABILITYETOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	Sample ide Container	ntific ruptur	atio e in previous A or	B test.			
GREEN IV None VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABILITY+QUANTATIVE+SCALABILITY=TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKB This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	TESTING EXPER	HENCE		RESULTS		REPORT	
VIOLET IV None PARAMETER RELATABILITY #QUANTATIVE + SCALABILITY = TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	GREEN IV		ľ	Vone			
PARAMETER RELATABILITY # QUANTATIVE + SCALABILITY = TOTAL Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	VIOLET IV		1	None			
Propagation 3 2 3 8 APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR ENDITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	PARAMETER			RELATABILITY	+QUANTAT	VE+SCALABILIT	Y = TOTAL
APPROXIMATE COST PER MATERIAL OR END ITEM TESTED \$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	Propagatio	n		3	2	3	8
\$300 per item RANK 1 REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	APPROXIMATE O	COST PE	R MATERIAL OR END IT	EM TESTED			
REMARKS This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	\$300 per i	tem				RANK	
This test is conducted in conjunction with a standard detonation "B" Test since it represents a more realistic approximation of the conditions of shipping and storage. This test is conducted to determine if the functioning of the acceptor item in one container would cause functioning of items in one or more adjacent containers due to additional confinement and varied configurations. This test is performed if the standard detonation Test "A" or Test "B" resulted in no communication within the container, and the (Over)	REMARKS						
	This test since it r shipping a of the acc one or mor configurat or Test "B	is con eprese nd sto eptor e adja ions. " resu	ducted in conjuncti nts a more realisti rage. This test is item in one contair cent containers due This test is perfo lted in no communic	ion with a s ic approxima s conducted ner would ca e to addition prmed if the cation withi	tandard ation of to detern use func onal conf standar n the co	detonation "B" the conditions mine if the fu tioning of ite inement and va d detonation T ntainer, and t Dver)	Test of inctioning ms in iried est "A" the

Number 421 Test: Modified Detonation Test B

REMARKS (Cont'd)

outside container was ruptured. The item in the donor container is primed and initiated by its own fuse or by an Engineer's Special J-2 blasting cap. The item primed in the donor container was the closest item to the explosive item in the acceptor container. This assured subjecting the acceptor explosives to maximum blast effects from donor material.

The test results of testing the M83A8 60mm Illuminating flare are shown below.

Test Item	Propagation	Blast Overpressure	Frag Mean	mentation Max Distance
Modified Detonation Test "B"	Yes	None	47	190
Propagation/Transition Test "B"	No	None	4	96

At the present time there are no criteria or accepted documentation that provide for the modified detonation test. Although similar tests have been performed and reported to the cognizant classifying agencies, it has not become a standard test. The test results clearly show that the reaction can be much more violent and total propagation can occur. The test configuration is more representative of those conditions found in shipping and storage. Repeated results would alter Q/D criteria, and the compatibility of the down grading from one classification to another would be offset. Additional testing with various end items and shipping containers should be conducted to validate the test and to guide the preparation of a standardized procedure.



APPENDIX B

TEST METHODS

FOR

PYROTECHNIC MATERIALS HAZARDS EVALUATION

by

A. Levine D. Kone

CONTENTS

+

	Page	
ALPHABETICAL INDEX OF TEST METHODS	75	
NUMERICAL INDEX OF TEST METHODS	76	
SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION	77	
SECTION 2. SAMPLING	78	
SECTION 3. TEST METHODS	79	
Group 100 - Pyrotechnic Material	s Test Methods 80	
Group 200 - Pyrotechnic End Item	s Test Methods 129	
Group 300 - Miscellaneous Test M	lethods 145	

And Article

ALPHABETICAL INDEX OF TEST METHODS

221243

discussion in

Title

Bulk Density	301
Bullet Impact - Friction	107
Burning Propagation Rate (Screen)	104
Burning Propagation Rate (Tube)	105
Card Gap	114
Closed Bomb	116
Compatibility (Reactivity with Surroundings)	302
Crash - Safety (40 Foot Drop)	205
Detonation - Compression	113
Differential Thermal Analysis	112
Electrical Spark Sensitivity	108
External Heat Test	203
High Explosive Equivalency	115
Hygroscopicity	303
Ignition and Unconfined Burning	103
Impact Sensitivity	106
Moisture (Desiccation Method)	304
Moisture and Total Volatiles (Gas Chromatographic Method)	306
Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method)	305
Parr Bomb Calorimeter	117
Propagation/Transition Test A	201
Propagation/Transition Test B	202
Thermal Stability (75°C Oven Method)	101
Thermal Stability (Tube Method)	102
Transportation Rough Handling	204

NUMERICAL INDEX OF TEST METHODS

Title

Thermal Stability (75°C Oven Method) 10	01
Thermal Stability (Tube Method) 10	02
Ignition and Unconfined Burning 10	03
Burning Propagation Rate (Screen) 10	04
Burning Propagation Rate (Tube) 10	05
Impact Sensitivity 10	06
Bullet Impact - Friction 10	07
Electrical Spark Sensitivity 10	08
Differential Thermal Analysis 12	12
Detonation - Compression 1	13
Card Gap 11	14
High Explosive Equivalency 1	15
Closed Bomb 1	16
Parr Bomb Calorimeter 1	17
Propagation/Transition Test A 20	01
Propagation/Transition Test B 20	02
External Heat Test 20	03
Transportation Rough Handling 20	04
Crash - Safety (40 Foot Drop) 20	05
Bulk Density	01
Compatibility (Reactivity with Surroundings) 30	02
Hygroscopicity	03
Moisture (Desiccation Method) 30	04
Moisture and Volatiles (Vacuum Oven Method) 30	05
Moisture and Total Volatiles (Gas Chromatographic Method) 30	06

SECTION 1

INTRODUCTION

1. SCOPE

1.1 This document describes the general methods of sampling and testing pyrotechnic materials and end items.

2. REFERENCED DOCUMENTS

2.1 References are listed at the end of each individual test method.

SECTION 2

SAMPLING

1. SCOPE

1.1 This section specifies the procedures for sampling pyrotechnic materials and end items.

2. SAMPLING

2.1 Select the required test samples that are representative of a batch of pyrotechnic material or a lot of pyrotechnic end items.

2.2 Transfer the pyrotechnic materials to approved airtight containers and seal the containers immediately. Keep all containers and end items in a safe location at room temperature until ready for testing.

2.3 Label each pyrotechnic container with the following information:

- a. Pyrotechnic designation
- b. Lot number
- c. Lot size
- d. Manufacturer's name and plant designation
- e. Date sampled

f. f. Date loaded

2.4 Before testing the pyrotechnic, inspect the sample container to see that it is not broken, unstoppered, or otherwise damaged. Also verify that it has been labeled correctly. Discard the contents of damaged or improperly labeled correctly.

2.5 Select samples as specified in the applicable test method.

SECTION 3

TEST METHODS

1. SCOPE

1.1 This section contains the examinations, tests and methods of analysis for pyrotechnic materials and end items as required for hazards evaluation.

1.2 Each test is considered as a separate method and is assigned an individual method number.

2. NUMBERING SYSTEM

2.1 Methods are arranged in three groups according to category of test. These groups are identified numerically by hundreds. Tests for pyrotechnic mixtures are in the 100 group, pyrotechnic end item tests are in the 200 group, and miscellaneous tests are in the 300 group.

2.2 Revision numbers are differentiated by the addition of tenths decimals to the test numbers. Revision numbers are assigned to basic numbers when changes are made in the method for clarification or to give additional details that will increase the reproducibility of the test results.

3. METHODS UNDER INVESTIGATION

3.1 The following methods are under investigation and are not included in the current edition of this document:

Dust Ignition Sensitivity (Hartman Apparatus) Explosion Temperature Ignition Temperature Triboelectric Sensitivity Small Arms Vulnerability Photomicrographs

Appendix B

79

THERMAL STABILITY (75° C OVEN METHOD)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test is conducted to determine if a pyrotechnic mixture is stable at an elevated temperature and to evaluate potential hazards due to any explosion, ignition, or marked decomposition that may occur at this temperature.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 This specimen shall consist of a $2 \pm 1/4$ inch cube formed from the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A ventilated, explosion proof oven with dual heat controls capable of maintaining a temperature of $75^{\circ} \pm 1^{\circ}$ C for a period of 48 hours and equipped to continuously record the temperature.
- (b) Three copper-constantan thermocouples connected to a temperature recorder.
- (c) A balance accurate to 1 milligram (mg).

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Weigh the 2-inch specimen cube to the nearest milligram and place it in the oven. Insert one thermocouple into the specimen and two thermocouples into the oven. Raise the oven temperature to $75^{\circ} \pm 1^{\circ}$ C. Maintain the temperature for 48 hours. Cool the specimen to room temperature and weigh to the nearest milligram. Record any temperature changes in the specimen. Observe any evidence of explosion, ignition, or decomposition. Record any change in the weight of the specimen.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test was designed to determine the thermal stability of a pyrotechnic mixture or explosive. It is similar to the thermal stability test in TB 700-2 except for the addition of the thermocouples to record temperature changes in the specimen. The temperature changes indicate exothermix or endothermic reactions.

5.2 To date, the testing of pyrotechnic mixtures by this method has not produced any meaningful results. It is recommended that this test be replaced by Method 102, Thermal Stability (Tube Method).

- 6. REFERENCES
 - (a) TB 700-2
 - (b) MIL-STD-650
 - (c) MIL-STD-1234
 - (d) GE-MTSD-R-035
 - (e) GE-MTSD-R-059
 - (f) Henkin, OSRD Report No. 3401, 22 March 1944
 - (g) Rinkenbach and Clear, PATR 1401
 - (h) Taylor and Rinkenbach, Journal of Franklin Inst, 204, Sep 1927, 369.
 - (i) Tomlinson and Sheffeld, PATR 1740, Rev. 1.
 - (j) TM 9-1910

THERMAL STABILITY (TUBE METHOD)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test is conducted to determine if a pyrotechnic mixture is stable at an elevated temperature and to evaluate potential hazards due to any explosion, ignition, or marked decomposition that may occur at the elevated temperature.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of 5 grams of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. (If desired, the pyrotechnic mixture may be compressed to the same density as in the end item for testing under simulated end item conditions.)

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A stainless steel tube having an outside diameter of 3/8 inch, a wall thickness of 0.35 inch, and a length of 8 inches.
- (b) Cotton.
- (c) A heating tape of nichrome ribbon.
- (d) Two chromel-alumel thermocouples connected to a temperature recorder.
- (e) An asbestos insulating jacket.
- (f) A temperature regulator for controlling the heating tape temperature.
- (g) A balance accurate to 0.2 milligram (mg).

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Weigh the specimen to the nearest 0.2 mg and place it in the stainless steel tube. Centrally locate one chromel-alumel thermocouple in the stainless steel tube. Plug both ends of the tube with loosely packed cotton. Locate the second thermocouple on the outside of the tube. Wrap the heating tape around the tube in a spiral, connect the temperature regulator to the heating tape, and cover the heating tape with the asbestos insulating jacket. (See figure 1.) Set the temperature regulator so that a temperature of $75^{\circ} \pm 1^{\circ}$ C is maintained within the tube. Maintain the temperture for 48 hours. Cool the specimen to room temperature and weigh to the nearest 0.2 mg. Record any temperature changes in the specimen. Observe any evidence of explosion, ignition, or decomposition. Record any change in the weight of the specimen.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test is recommended as the replacement for Method 101, Thermal Stability (75°C Oven Method) because it better approximates the storage conditions of pyrotechnic mixtures in munitions.

6. REFERENCES

(a) King and Lasseigne, Final Report TSA-20-72-5





Appendix B

84

IGNITION AND UNCONFINED BURNING

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test was designed primarily to determine the probable gross fire hazards and transition to deflagration/detonation hazards of pyrotechnic mixtures.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of six $2 \pm 1/4$ inch cubes of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A sheet metal tray 12 inches square by 1/4 inch deep.
- (b) A quantity of kerosene-soaked sawdust.
- (c) An electric match head igniter.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Place the sheet metal tray on a suitable fireproof surface and fill it with kerosenesoaked sawdust. Place a 2-inch specimen cube in the center of the tray. Place an electric match head igniter in the sawdust bed (see figure 1). Using approved safety operating procedures, ignite the sawdust with the electric match head igniter.

4.2 Repeat the procedure in 4.1 with another 2-inch specimen cube and then repeat it again with four 2-inch specimen cubes placed end-to-end in a single row in contact with each other (see figure 2). Observe any evidence of transition from burning to deflagration / detonation. Record the burning time.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 Explicit specifications should be written for the kerosene and sawdust materials. The variability in types of sawdust and kerosene available is too great and may cause the properties of the fire to which the specimen is subject to vary.

5.2 This method assumes that the material to be tested is a solid material that can be cut or machined into a 2-inch cube. Pyrotechnic mixtures are usually granular. A provision for granular materials should be made.

5.3 This test does not provide a definitive enough basis for determining burning rate. Moreover, the chance of detonation of the pyrotechnic mixture is extremely remote as tests have shown that these materials are not susceptible to a detonation reaction.

5.4 Based on evidence to date, it is concluded that this test does not adequately evaluate any potential hazards of pyrotechnic mixtures and therefore should not be used to test pyrotechnic mixtures.

6. REFERENCES

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-037
- (d) Clear, PATR-FRL-TR 25





BURNING PROPAGATION RATE (SCREEN)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the burning propagation rate of pyrotechnic mixtures under unconfined conditions.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested which has been prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A Hewlett Packard Model HP52336 electronic counter or equivalent
- (b) Stainless steel screen, 100-mesh
- (c) Ring stand support
- (d) Wood and hardware for constructing frame for screen and propane burner support
- (e) Ceramic stand-offs
- (f) Propane torch
- (g) Protective shield
- (h) Lead fuse wire, 0.5 amp
- (i) Electrical relay

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Conduct the test in a well-ventilated hood. Set up a burning propagation rate apparatus as shown on figures 1 through 4 using the equipment described in 3.1. On the stainless steel screen, arrange a bed of the pyrotechnic mixture which is 11 inches long and which has a cross sectional area perpendicular to the length that is roughly triangular with a base width of 2 inches and a height of 1 inch. Place the lead fuse wires so that there is a distance of $5 \pm 1/16$ inch between them and so that there is a 3-inch length of the specimen bed from each fuse wire to its closest end of the bed. Catch any specimen that falls

through the screen while the specimen bed is being prepared and return it to the top of the bed. Activate the electrical equipment and adjust the controls in accordance with the manufacturer's operating instructions. Turn on the exhaust hood. With the protective shield between the propane burner and the burning propagation rate apparatus, light the burner with a striker. Adjust the burner flame to a 2-inch pencil tip. Lower the hood door and apply the burner flame to the end of the specimen bed by means of the propane burner support taking care not to disturb the fuse wires. Record the time of burning between the fuse wires. Conduct five trials.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test provides a means of determining the burning propagation rate of a pyrotechnic mixture under unconfined conditions in inches per second. The results obtained from this test are more significant than the results obtained from the Ignition and Unconfined Burning test.

6. REFERENCES

(a) Clear, PATR-FRL-TR25

(b) King and Lasseigne, Final Report TSA 20-72-5



Figure 1. Burn Rate Apparatus











Figure 4. Burn Rate Test Set-up

BURNING PROPAGATION RATE (TUBE)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the burning propagation rate of pyrotechnic mixtures under confined conditions.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen for each trial shall consist of sufficient pyrotechnic mixture to fill a tube 12 inches long and approximately 1-2/3 inches in diameter. If desired the pyrotechnic mixture may be consolidated to the same density as in the end item in which it is used.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A cold drawn seamless, 1015 composition, steel tube having a 1.875 inch outside diameter, a 0.219 ± 0.002 inch wall thickness, and a 12 inch length. The tube shall have two sawcuts perpendicular to the long axis as shown in figure 1.
- (b) A Hewlett Packard Model HP52336 electronic counter and an electrical relay or equivalent equipment.
- (c) Propane torch
- (d) Protective shield
- (e) Lead fuse wire, 0.5 amp
- (f) Wood and hardware for constructing a propane burner support.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Conduct the test in a well-ventilated hood. Set up burning propagation rate apparatus by covering the saw cuts in the steel tube with tape and filling the tube with the pyrotechnic mixture specimen. Place the tube in a horizontal position with the saw cuts at the top, remove the tape and run separate lead fuse wires through each saw cut. Attach the electrical counting equipment as shown in figure 2, activate it, and adjust the controls in accordance with the manufacturer's operating instructions. Turn on the exhaust hood. With the protective shield between the propane burner and the tube, light the burner with a striker and adjust the burner flame to a 2-inch pencil tip. Lower the hood door and apply the burner flame to the specimen at the end of the tube which is 4 inches from a fuse wire by means of a propane burner support. Record the time of burning between the fuse wires. Conduct five trials.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test is similar to the Burning Propagation Rate (Screen) test except that the pyrotechnic mixture is tested in a confined state. This simulates conditions that occur in pyrotechnic end items.

6. REFERENCES

(a) Clear, PATR-FRL-TR25

(b) King and Lasseigne, Final Report TSA 20-72-5



é.

*Sawcuts will be covered with Texcel Tape prior to loading. <u>Material:</u> Seamless steel tubing, 1015 cold drawn.

Tolerances

 $\begin{array}{c} 0.000 \pm 0.010 \\ 0. \pm 0.0625 \end{array}$





1st Fuse Wire

Figure 2. Wiring Diagram for Measuring Burn Time

Appendix B

97

IMPACT SENSITIVITY

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the probable sensitivity of a pyrotechnic mixture to decomposition or detonation as a result of mechanical shock caused by impact.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of 10 milligrams (mg) of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing. The temperature of the specimen at the time of test shall be $25^\circ + 5^\circ$ C.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A Bureau of Explosives impact apparatus. Drawings for the construction of the apparatus are available from the Bureau of Explosives, Association of American Railroads, 2 Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10001.
- (b) Suitable cleaning materials and equipment for removing the decomposed residue from the cup and anvil of the impact apparatus.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Level the apparatus. Make sure that the cup and anvil are thoroughly clean and dry. Use a new cup if the old cup cannot be thoroughly cleaned. The apparatus should be at a temperature of $25^{\circ} \pm 5^{\circ}$ C at the time of test. Place the 10-mg specimen in the test cup and place the impact apparatus. Using approved safety operating procedures, prepare the apparatus for testing and then initiate the test by releasing the weight. A typical test configuration is shown on figure 1.

4.2 Using the procedure in 4.1, conduct 10 trials with a drop height of 3-3/4 inches and 10 trials with a drop height of 10 inches. Use a new 10-mg specimen in a clean up for each trial. Observe any noise, smoke, flame, decomposed specimen in the cup, or lack of reaction.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 Instrumentation of the impact apparatus to determine dwell time, terminal velocity at impact, velocity of the falling weight, and force of impact should be considered. The use of an ionization probe to sense reactions should also be investigated.

5.2 The weight of specimen used should be optimized. The weight must be large enough to assure that a representative mixture is being tested. However, because sensitivity decreases with increased weight due to cushioning and heat sink effects, it must not be too large. The best weight probably will be in the 10 to 50 mg range.

5.3 The strike weight should also be considered. As sensitivity decreases, greater strike weights may be needed. The use of additional drop heights of 7 and 15 inches should be investigated.

5.4 Relative humidity conditions should be specified for the test.

6. REFERENCES

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) MIL-STD-650, method 505.1
- (c) MIL-STD-1234, method 505.1
- (d) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (e) GE-MTSD-R-056
- (f) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (g) AMCP 706-180
- (h) Bureau of Mines Bulletin 346, p. 72
- (i) Bureau of Mines Technical Paper 234
- (j) Clear, PATR-FRL-TR-25 (1961)
- (k) Downard, Fox, and Lawrence, ORSD 6627
- (1) Eyster and Davis ORSD 5744
- (m) Fox, ORSD 3185
- (n) Fox, ORSD 3991
- (o) Fox, ORSD 4962
- (p) Rinkenbach and Clear, PATR 1401
- (q) Taylor and Rinkenbach, Journal of the Franklin Institute 204 (1927), 369
- (r) Tomlinson and Sheffeld, PATR 1740



Figure 1. A Typical Test Configuration

BULLET IMPACT - FRICTION

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the sensitivity of bulk pyrotechnic mixtures to the combination of impact and friction produced by a small arms bullet in flight.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen for each trial shall consist of sufficient pyrotechnic mixture to fill a pipe 3 inches long and 2 inches in diameter. If desired the pyrotechnic mixture may be consolidated to the same density as in the end item.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for each trial are as follows:

- (a) A piece of cast iron pipe 3 inches long having a 2-inch inside diameter and a 1/16-inch wall thickness and which is threaded at both ends.
- (b) Two cast iron threaded caps for the ends of the pipe.
- (c) A 0.30 caliber rifle and standard 0.30 caliber bullet.
- (d) A balance accurate to 1 gram.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Screw one cap on the end of the pipe and weigh to the nearest gram. Fill the pipe with the specimen and reweigh. Screw on the second cap. Place the loaded pipe in a vertical position. Using approved safety operating procedures, fire the 0.30 caliber bullet through the pipe from a distance of 90 feet so that the bullet strikes between the two caps and perpendicular to the long axis of the pipe.

4.2 Conduct five trials. Record the weight of specimen used in each trial. Record the number of high order detonations, low order detonations and partial detonations (where the specimen burns), and the number of times there were no detonations.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test indicates potential hazards which may result from the sensitivity of a pyrotechnic mixture to a combination of friction and impact.

6. REFERENCES

- (a) TM 9-1910
- (b) Tomlinson and Sheffeld, PATR 1740.
- (c) Eyster, E. H., Kistiakowsky, G. B., et al., "Sensitivity of Explosives to Projectile Impact," OSRD 3156, 1 January 1944.
- (d) Eyster, E. H. and Rogers, W. H., "Physical Testing of Explosives, Part I, The Sensitivity of Explosives to Bullet Impact," OSRD 5745, 20 November 1945.

ELECTRICAL SPARK SENSITIVITY

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the sensitivity of pyrotechnic mixtures to ignition by electrostatic charge. The sensitivity is expressed in terms of the minimum energy in an electrical spark discharge which will ignite the pyrotechnic mixture.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of 10 to 15 milligrams of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A Fluke Model 410B high voltage power supply or equivalent
- (b) Capacitors: 0.002, 0.01, 0.02, 0.05, 0.1 and 1 microfarad
- (c) Needle point voltage probe
- (d) Aluminum plate
- (e) A spark gap test fixture
- (f) A limiting resistor
- (g) Suitable switches for charging and discharging capacitor

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Assemble the material described in 3.1 into the test configuration shown on figure 1. Initially, use the 1 microfarad capacitor. Connect the positive terminal of the condenser to the needle point voltage probe and the negative terminal to the aluminum plate. After verifying that the high voltage power supply is off, place the specimen in an even layer on the aluminum plate. Ground the specimen. Using approved safety operating procedures, turn on the high voltage power supply. Caution: Because of the high voltages present in the following procedure, use extreme caution to prevent accidental contact with points of high voltage. With all output voltage switches at zero, turn the high voltage power switch on.

With approximately five seconds between steps, advance the output voltage swithces to the test voltage. Record the final voltage on a data sheet similar to the on shown on figure 2.

Using the control knob, lower the spark gap probe toward the specimen until a spark occurs. Return the probe to this original position. Return the high voltage power supply output switches to zero. Observe the specimen for smoke, flame, or other evidence of ignition or for a lack of reaction and record the observation on the data sheet. Calculate the joules of energy to which the specimen was subjected as described on the data sheet.

4.2 In the first series of trials, use the 1 microfrared capacitor and the test voltages shown on figure 3. It is suggested that a test voltage of 1 kilovolt be used for the first trial. Conduct additional trials using the test voltages shown on figure 3 until at the lower of two consecutive test voltages no ignition is observed and at the higher test voltage evidence of ignition is observed. Then, using smaller capacitors and higher test voltages, determine as accurately as possible the amount of energy below which no ignition is observed and above which ignition is observed. Upon completion of all trials, turn the high voltage power supply off.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 Electrostatic charges may present potential hazards during the manufacturing, storage, and transportation of pyrotechnic mixtures because the energy involved may be great enough to cause ignition. This test provides information on the sensitivity of pyrotechnic mixture to the energy released by an electrostatic discharge.

6. **REFERENCES**

- (a) GE-MTSD-R-057
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (c) TM9-1910
- (d) Bureau of Mines Bulletin No. 346
- (e) Tomlinson and Sheffeld, PATR 1740
- (f) AMCP 706-177
- (g) AMCP 706-186
- (h) Bureau of Mines Report of Investigations 3852, (Brown, F. W. et al)



Figure 1. Electrostatic Ignition Susceptibility Test Setup
Appe	DATA SH				
endix B	TEST NO.	TEST CONFIGURATION	VALUE OF CAPACITANCE (UF)	VOLTAGE LEVEL (VOLTS)	EN 1/ (JO
10					
0,					

DATA SHEET

IERGY 2 CV² DULES) TEMPERATURE HUMIDITY DA TE: **OBSERVATIONS** COMMENTS

Figure 2. Electrostatic Ignition Susceptibility Test Data Sheet

Method 108

TRIAL #	VOLTAGE	ENERGY (JOULE)
1	10	. 00005
2	100	.005
3	200	. 02
4	300	. 032
5	400	. 08
6	500	. 12
7	600	. 18
8	700	. 30
9	800	. 32
10	900	. 405
11	1KV	.5
12	2K	2.0
13	3KV	4.5
14	4K	8.0
15	5K	12.5
16	6K	18.0
17	'nк	24.5
18	8K	32.0
19	9K	40.5
20	10K	50.0

1

Figure 3. Energy Discharge Values at One Microfarad Capacitance

Appendix B

DIFFERENTIAL THERMAL ANALYSIS

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines ignition temperature and other physical and chemical reactions which may occur in a pyrotechnic mixture when the mixture is heated. The test measures the temperature difference between the pyrotechnic mixture and a thermally inert reference material as both are heated at a constant rate of increase in temperature.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of approximately 25 milligrams (mg) of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by passing it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A Fischer Series 200 differential thermal analyzer or similar equipment.
- (b) A Varian Aerograph Model 20, dual-channel, strip-chart potentiometric recorder having a 1-millivolt full scale sensitivity on each channel or similar equipment.
- (c) A thermally inert reference material such as quartz crystals, approximately 25 mg.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Using approved safety operating procedures and the manufacturer's operating instructions for the differential thermal analyzer and the recorder, obtain the thermogram of the specimen compared to the thermally inert reference material. The heating rate should be set at approximately 5°C per minute and the chart speed at approximately 10 inches per hour. Continue heating until the specimen is decomposed. A schematic diagram of the differential thermal analysis equipment is shown on figure 1.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test detects exothermic or endothermic changes that occur in the specimen while it is being heated. These changes may be related to dehydration, decomposition, crystalline transition, melting, boiling, vaporization, polymerization, oxidation, or reduction. The test is rapid and reasonably accurate. The results obtained provide significant information on the thermal stability and ignition sensitivity of the specimen. 5.2 The interpretation of the thermogram for determining where true ignition occurs needs further investigation. The first temperature differential associated with ignition usually represents an "on-set to ignition" characteristic which is not the true ignition temperature.

6. REFERENCES

- (a) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (b) EATR 4580

(c) Vold, Marjorie J., Analytic Chemistry, 21, 683 (1949).



Figure 1. Differential Thermal Analyzer Diagram

110

DETONATION - COMPRESSION

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the probable sensitivity of pyrotechnic mixtures to detonation in free air.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested in the form of a $2 \pm 1/4$ inch cube.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A solid lead cylinder 1-1/2 inches in diameter by 4 inches long of known purity and hardness.
- (b) A mild steel plate, SAE 1010 to 1030, 1/2 inch thick by 12 inches square.
- (c) A number 8 blasting cap, a blasting machine, and connecting wire (blasting line).
- (d) A block of wood 2 inches in diameter and as long as the blasting cap, drilled to receive the blasting cap through its vertical axis.
- (e) A go-no-go gage for the 1-1/2 inch diameter lead block with a 1/16 inch tolerance.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Place the steel plate horizontally in a suitable facility. Place the lead cylinder on the center of the steel plate in a vertical standing position. Place the 2-inch specimen cube on top of the lead cylinder. Place the wood block containing the blasting cap on top of the specimen so that the cap is perpendicular to and in contact with the top surface of the specimen (see figure 1). Connect the blasting machine to the blasting cap and fire the blasting cap from a safe location using approved safety operating procedures.

4.2 Repeat the test on additional specimens until the detonation of a specimen occurs. Detonation is considered to have taken place if the lead cylinder is deformed (by mush-rooming) so that the upper diameter has increased by at least 1/16 inch as indicated by the go-no-go gage. If no detonation of a specimen has occured after five trials, terminate the test.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 The test does not make provisions for granular specimens, nor for standard compression, tamping, or confinement of the material.

5.2 This test should not be used in the evaluation of potential hazards of pyrotechnic material since present evidence is that pyrotechnic mixtures are not susceptible to detonation in the unconfined state.

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (d) Monroe and Tiffany, B of M Bulletin 346.
- (e) OSRD Report #1364



Figure 1. Detonation - Compression Test Configuration

Appendix B

CARD GAP

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the detonation sensitivity of pyrotechnic mixtures under the influence of an explosive shock wave.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen for each trial shall consist of sufficient pyrotechnic mixture to fill a 1-7/8 inch diameter tube having a 5-1/2 inch length. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for each trial are as follows:

- (a) A cold drawn seamless, 1015 composition, steel tube having a 1-7/8 inch outside diameter, a 0.219 ± 0.022 inch wall thickness, and a 5-1/2 inch length.
- (b) A steel plate (witness plate), 6 inches square by 3/8 inch thick, made of SAE 1010 steel and having a Rockwell "B" hardness of 50 to 60 and a tensile strength of 60,000 to 65,000 pounds per square inch.
- (c) An engineers special blasting cap, J-2.
- (d) A blasting machine and wire.
- (e) A block of wood 2 inches in diameter and as long as the blasting cap, drilled to receive the blasting cap through its major axis.
- (f) Two pentolite pellets 2 inches in diameter by 1 inch long.
- (g) A quantity of cellulose acetate cards 2 inches in diameter by 0.01 inch thick.
- (h) Four pieces of plastic 1/16 inch thick by 1/2 inch square.
- (i) Cardboard tube to hold materials in test configuration.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 The temperatures of the specimen and the pentolite booster at the time of testing should be $25^{\circ} \pm 5^{\circ}$ C. Place the witness plate in a horizontal position, supported along its edges, approximately 6 inches above the ground surface (see figure 1). Place the four

pieces of plastic on the plate to support the tube containing the specimen in the center of the plate. Fill the steel tube with the specimen and place it on the plastic pieces so that there is a 1/16-inch space between the bottom of tube and the plate. The plastic pieces should not extend under the specimen. Place both pentolite pellets on top of the tube so that the bottom pellet it in contact with the specimen. Insert the blasting cap into the wooden block and place the block on top of the pentolite pellets so that the end of the blasting cap is in contact with the top pellet. Attach the blasting cap to the blasting machine and fire the blasting cap from a safe location using approved safety procedures. Detonation of the specimen is indicated by a clean hole cut through the witness plate. If detonation of the specimen does not occur, repeat the test procedures for two additional trials. If no detonation of the specimen occurs in the three trials, discontinue the test.

4.2 If detonation occurs in any of the first three trials, repeat the procedure in 4.1 adding cellulose acetate cards between the steel tube and the lower pentolite pellet as shown on figure 1. If detonation occurs, repeat the test using twice as many cards (16, $32, 64, 128, \ldots$) until detonation fails to occur. When detonation fails to occur, remove one-quarter of the number of cards for the next test. If detonation occurs or fails to occur, add or remove, respectively, one-eighth of the number of cards at which the first lack of detonation occured. Repeat this addition or removal of cards procedure by the factor of $1/16, 1/32, 1/64, 1/128, \ldots$ until the number of cards is obtained at which the probability of detonation is 50 percent.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 The "go-no-go" characteristics of card gap warrants further examination with respect to its use as a means of determining degree of sensitivity. In this test, pyrotechnic mixtures do not detonate and cut a hole through the witness plate. As a result, the procedure using cellulose acetate cards is not employed. The pyrotechnic specimens will fall out of the steel tube unless they are compacted or unless the test is conducted in a 180° vertical orientation. It is recommended that the addition of instrumentation to measure overpressure and impulse be investigated in an effort to obtain more meaningful test results.

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) TM 9-1910
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (d) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (e) Munroe and Tiffany, Bureau of Mines Bulletin No. 346
- (f) AMCP 706-180





HIGH EXPLOSIVE EQUIVALENCY

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the ratio of the amount of energy released in a detonation reaction of a pyrotechnic mixture to the amount of energy released by a high explosive under the same conditions.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen for each of five trials shall consist of 100 grams (g) of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

3.1.1 Explosive composition C-4, 100 g.

3.1.2 Seven high explosive equivalency test vessels. Each test vessel consists of the following materials:

- (a) A cold drawn seamless, 1015 composition, steel tube having a 1-7/8 inch outside diameter, a 0.219 ± 0.022 inch wall thickness, and a 5-1/2 inch length. The tube is threaded at both ends to receive pipe caps.
- (b) Two 3,000 psi forged steel pipe caps for the ends of the steel tube. One cap contains a hole to accept a blasting cap.
- (c) A J-2 engineers special blasting cap and ignition wires.
- (d) Epoxy resin for sealing the blasting cap in the pipe cap.
- (e) Aluminum tape.

3.1.3 A test fixture for suspending the test vessel at a height of 9 feet above ground level.

3.1.4 A blast overpressure instrumentation system consisting of the following components:

(a) Eight blast overpressure transducers, Susquehanna Instruments, Model ST-7 or equivalent, mounted in aerodynamic probes.

- (b) Eight in-line amplifiers, PCB Piezotronics, Inc. Model 402 or equivalent.
- (c) Eight transient recorders, Biomation Model 610B or equivalent.
- (d) Nine electronic counters, Hewlett-Packard Model 5233L or equivalent.
- (e) One digital voltmeter, Hewlett-Packard Model 2501C or equivalent.
- (f) One 12-channel "Dijitscan," available from Pievan Data Systems or equivalent recorder/memory interface.
- (g) One X-Y plotter, Stromberg-Carlson 4020 or equivalent.
- (h) One oscilloscope with camera pack, Tektronics Model 503 or equivalent.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Assemble the test vessel as shown on figure 1. Place the material to be tested in the vessel. Place the pipe cap (with a J-2 engineers special blasting cap preinstalled) on the threaded tube and tighten securely. Suspend the loaded vessel in the center of the instrumented test area at a height of 9 feet above ground level. Set up a blast overpressure instrumentation system as shown on figures 2 and 3 using the material described in 3.1.4. Aim the transducers at the test vessel and activate the instrumentation system. Initiate the test using approved safety operating procedures.

4.2 Conduct seven trials using the procedure described in 4.1. In the first and last trials use 100 g of explosive composition C-4 as the test material. In the second through the sixth trial use 100 to 200 g of the pyrotechnic mixture specimen as the test material.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the high explosive equivalency of the pyrotechnic mixture in accordance with Appendix B of GE-MTSD-R-035. A computer program for processing the data is presented in GE-MTSD-R-070.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This test determines maximum overpressure, function time, and positive impulse at eight scaled distances. These characteristics are used to provide a basis for comparing the "damage potential" of pyrotechnic mixtures under confined conditions to that of a standard high explosive (C-4). This approach is based on the assumption that the blast energy output of the pyrotechnic mixture results from detonation and therefore is comparable to a standard high explosive.

6.2 The test instrumentation used is a sophisticated version of the equipment required for blast pressure determination in chapter 5 of TB 700-2. It is based on the exploratory work of GE-MTSD at the Mississippi Test Facility of the National Aeronautics and Space Administration. The high explosive equivalency test data which resulted from this work is not conclusive because of the following considerations:

- (a) The weight of specimen varied from 50 to 125 g.
- (b) The allowable void (in confinement) varied from 25 to 40 percent.
- (c) The high explosive equivalencies based on maximum overpressure appeared to provide some useful information. However, they were not constant over the eight distances used.
- (d) The high explosive equivalencies based on positive impulse were unsatisfactory.

6.3 It is therefore recommended that this test method be thoroughly investigated in order to define all test parameters. Modification of this test method will be necessary before it can be considered for inclusion in the revised version of TB 700-2.

7. REFERENCES

- (a) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-050
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (d) GE-MTSD-R-070
- (e) GE-MTSD-FR-030
- (f) TB 700-2
- (g) TM 9-1910
- (h) AMCP 706-180
- (i) PATR 1740
- (j) OSRD 1707
- (k) BLR Report 1092

Appendix B









Figure 2. Spiral Transducer Array



Figure 3. Blast Measurement Instrumentation System

122

CLOSED BOMB

1. SCOPE

1.1 This method determines the relative quickness and relative force of a pyrotechnic mixture. The relative quickness value is defined as the average rate of change of pressure with respect to time (dp/dt) of the pyrotechnic mixture divided by that of a standard high explosive. The relative force value is the ratio of the maximum pressures developed by the pyrotechnic mixture and the standard high explosive.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen for each trial shall consist of sufficient pyrotechnic mixture to produce a loading density of 0.2 gram (g) per cubic centimeter (cc) of bomb volume.

3. APPARATUS

- 3.1 The following apparatus is required:
 - (a) A 200-cc closed bomb capable of withstanding the pressures generated in the test. The inside diameter of the bomb should be about 2 inches. Equip the bomb with firing electrodes to effect ignition, a gas release valve, and a pressure transducer. Surround the bomb with a temperature controlled water jacket to maintain the required test temperature.
 - (b) A data acquisition system consisting of a pressure transducer, charge amplifier, D.C. amplifiers, differentiating amplifiers, and a cathode ray oscilloscope and equipment capable of photographing a trace; or an equivalent system capable of producing the required data.
 - (c) A piezo-electric type pressure transducer with a frequency response of at least 25 Kilohertz and a response to applied pressure which is linear over a range of 0 to 40,000 pounds per square inch (psi). Calibrate the transducer at least once per month with a dead weight tester or similar device which has an accuracy of \pm 0.1 percent. If significant changes in guage sensitivity are noted, discontinue its use.
 - (d) An ignition system consisting of an electric squib and 0.5 to 1.0 g of black powder or an equivalent system.
 - (e) A balance accurate to 0.05 g.

4.0 PROCEDURE

4.1 Determine the volume of the closed bomb by filling it with water and measuring the volume of the water. Condition the material to be tested to $90^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ F. Use a loading density of 0.2 g per cc for the specimen. The loading density of the standard high explosive will depend on the material used. Weigh the material put into the bomb to the nearest 0.05 g.

4.2 Make a warm-up shot prior to the start of the firing series. Alternate firing of the standard and the specimen and obtain records of the resulting dp/dt vs pressure traces. Conduct at least three firings of both the standard and the specimen. Clean the closed bomb thoroughly after each firing.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 The relative quickness values are taken at pressure points between approximately 25 percent and 75 percent of maximum pressure. Make Vy measurements at Vx values of 0.50, 0.75, 1.00, and 1.25 volts. Calculate the relative quickness at each Vx value as follows:

Relative quickness = <u>100 (Average Vy value of specimen)</u> (Average Vy value of standard)

Average the four results to obtain the relative quickness value of the pyrotechnic mixture.

5.2 Make the maximum pressure (Vmax) measurement at the point where a line tangent to the furtherest portion (from the Y axis) of the firing trace intersects the X axis. Calculate the relative force value as follows:

Relative force = <u>100 (Average Vmax of specimen)</u> (Average Vmax of standard)

The sensitivity settings of the recording instruments should be chosen so that the maximum pressure value falls between 1.75 and 2.00 volts.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This method provides information on the rate of reaction and the force generated by a pyrotechnic mixture compared to a standard high explosive when both materials are separately ignited under confined conditions. The selection of a standard high explosive will be made after testing begins.

- (a) MIL-STD-286B, Method 801.1.1
- (b) OSRD 1707
- (c) Munroe and Tiffany, Bureau of Mines Bulletin 346

Closed Bomb



Rate of pressure rise (dp/dt) vs. Pressure (P)

Figure 1. A Typical Trace Recording

PARR BOMB CALORIMETER

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the gross heat of combustion and gross heat of explosion of a pyrotechnic mixture. The gross heat of combustion is measured by burning the pyrotechnic mixture in an oxygen filled bomb submerged in water in an adiabatic chamber and measuring the rise in water temperature. The gross heat of explosion is measured by using nitrogen in the bomb in place of the oxygen.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of the quantity of pyrotechnic mixture necessary to cause a 2° to 3° C rise in water temperature. (If the approximate amount of specimen needed is unknown, use 1 to 2 grams (g) of specimen in the first trial.) The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) A Parr Instrument Co. Series 1200 adiabatic oxygen bomb calorimeter and related equipment or a similar adiabatic oxygen bomb calorimeter.
- (b) A Parr Instrument Co. Series 2900 calorimeter temperature controller or similar equipment.
- (c) A differential thermometer with a 5° C range and 0.01°C gradations.
- (d) A balance with 0.2 g sensitivity and 5 kilogram capacity.
- (e) A balance with 0.1 milligram (mg) sensitivity.
- (f) Prepurified nitrogen having an oxygen content of no more than 0.01 percent.
- (g) Pure oxygen.
- (h) Calorimetric standard banzoic acid pellets.
- (i) Distilled water.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 <u>Standard benzoic acid.</u> Weigh to the nearest 0.1 mg approximately 1 g of the standard benzoic acid into a tared calorimeter combustion cup. Attach a 10-centimeter length of fuse wire to the electrodes in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

Appendix B

126

Place the combustion cup in its holder beneath the bomb head and bring the fuse wire in contact with the benzoic acid using the procedure described in the manufacturer's instruction manual. Place the assembled bomb head, along with 1 milliliter of distilled water, in the bomb cylinder and screw on the retaining cap. Tare the calorimeter bucket and fill with 2000.0 + 0.2 g of distilled water. Pressurize the bomb with 25 to 30 atmospheres of pure oxygen and submerge it in the calorimeter bucket. Observe the submerged bomb for gas leakage as evidenced by bubbles. Do not fire the bomb if there is evidence of leakage. Place the calorimeter bucket inside the calorimeter jacket and attach the ignition wire to the firing terminal of the bomb. Close the cover and lower the thermometers into position. Turn on the automatic temperature controller and allow 10 minutes to establish temperature equilibrium between the calorimeter bucket and the calorimeter jacket. (Adiabatic conditions may be established and maintained by manual manipulation of the hot and cold water supplies.) Record the initial temperature. Using approved safety operating procedures, fire the charge. Allow the automatic temperature controller to equilibrate the calorimeter bucket and the calorimeter jacket temperatures after firing. Record the final maximum temperature when three identical readings have been made at 1-minute intervals. Remove the bomb from the calorimeter, release the pressure in a hood, disassemble, and clean. Measure the unburned fuse wire so that the measured heat of combustion may be corrected for the heat contributed by the fuse wire. Calibrate each calorimeter system monthly. Calculate the water equivalent of the calorimeter as follows:

Water equivalent, calories per °C = (6,318W + C)T

where:

C = Correction for combustion of fuse wire in calories, T = Temperature rise, °C, corrected for thermometer error and emergent

stem, and

W = Weight of standard benzoic acid in grams.

4.2 <u>Heat of combustion</u>. Weigh the specimen to the nearest 0.1 mg into a tared combustion cup. Repeat the procedure used for the standard benzoic acid in 4.1 except use a bomb pressure of 5 atmospheres of oxygen. Calculate the heat of combustion as follows:

Heat of combustion, calories per gram = $\frac{ET}{W}$

where: E = Water equivalent in calories per °C calculated in 4.1,

T = Temperature rise, °C, corrected for thermometer error and

W = Weight of specimen in grams.

4.3 <u>Heat of explosion</u>. Weigh the specimen to the nearest 0.1 mg into a tared combustion cup. Repeat the procedure used for the standard benzoic acid in 4.1 except omit the addition of a 1 ml of distilled water to the bomb and pressurize the bomb with 25 atmospheres of prepurified nitrogen after purging the bomb twice with the nitrogen. Calculate the heat of explosion as follows:

Heat of explosion, calories per gram = $\frac{\text{ET}}{\text{W}}$

Appendix B

where:

E = Water equivalent in calories per °C calculated in 4.1,

- T = Temperature rise, °C, corrected for thermometer error and emergent stem, and
- W = Weight of specimen in grams.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 The heat of combustion and the heat of explosion of pyrotechnic mixtures give an indication of heat liberation potential and explosive power potential. These potentials are directly related to a pyrotechnic mixture's hazard potential. Another important factor which should be taken into consideration is the rate of pressure rise within the bomb as a function of time. The feasibility of instrumenting a Parr bomb to record such pressure rises should be examined. The rate of pressure rise gives an indication of the rate of reaction of the pyrotechnic mixture and can also be used to calculate the volume of gas liberated during the reaction. Consideration should also be given to determining the heat of combustion and heat of explosion in a bomb whose internal volume more nearly approaches the volume of the specimen. Any free volume in the bomb tends to influence the composition of the end products and thus affects the total heat content. This approach is reflected in the current Closed Bomb method.

- (a) MIL-STD-286B, method 802.1
- (b) ASTM D240-64
- (c) ORSD 293
- (d) ORSD 702
- (e) ORSD 1707
- (f) PATR 1740
- (g) GE-MTSD-R-059
- (h) TM 9-1910
- (i) Burlot and Thomas, Memoirs Poudres 29, 1939, 262.
- (j) Munroe and Tiffany, Bureau of Mines Bulletin 346.

PROPAGATION/TRANSITION TEST A

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test determines the potential hazards associated with the propagation of functioning from one end item (donar) in the container to surrounding end items (receptors) in the container.

2. TEST ITEMS

2.1 The test items required for each trial shall consist of the pyrotechnic end items packaged in an experimental or standard storage and shipping container.

3. MATERIAL

- 3.1 Materials required for each trial are as follows:
 - (a) One electrical initiator: M2 squib or Engineers special electric blasting cap, J-2, as required.
 - (b) One blasting machine or equivalent for use with the electrical initiator.
 - (c) Wire (blasting line) for connecting blasting machine to electrical initiator.
 - (d) One still camera.
 - (e) One motion picture camera, 24 frames per second.
 - (f) One motion picture camera, 1,000 frames per second.
 - (g) Instrumentation to record blast overpressure, impulse, and thermal flux.
 - (h) Meteorological equipment.
 - (i) Sampling equipment for effluent gases.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Open the shipping container. Prime the most centrally positioned pyrotechnic end item in the container with the electrical initiator and connect the blasting line to the initiator. Reclose the container and place it on a suitable pad for remote controlled ignition. Attach the blasting line to the blasting machine and fire the primed pyrotechnic end item (donor) from a safe location using approved safety procedures. 4.2 This test should be conducted until propagation to receptor pyrotechnic end items occurs. If no propagation has occurred after five trials, terminate the test. If propagation to receptor end items does occur, discontinue this test, record the results, and conduct Propagation/Transition Test B.

4.3 Observe the number of end items within the container that have functioned and the condition of the container. During the test, sample any effluent gases for subsequent chemical analysis.

5. DOCUMENTATION

5.1 The documentation of this test shall include the following information:

- (a) Item designation (and Federal Stock No. if available).
- (b) Item lot number.
- (c) Item sublot number.
- (d) Item serial number.
- (e) Detailed quality control report on location and size of defects if any, in test item.
- (f) Date of manufacture of item.
- (g) Date of test.
- (h) Meteorological data: ambient air temperature, barometric pressure, wind velocity and direction, and relative humidity.
- (i) Schematic drawing of test setup prior to test showing location, type, and distance of instrumentation, cameras, and test item.
- (j) Photographs of the actual test items in the test configuration and photographs of the test position after firing.
- (k) Motion pictures of actual test at 24 and 1,000 frames per second.
- (1) Overpressure in psi and impulse vs distance curve (including calibration test).
- (m) A map locating the radial and angular positions of unexploded items and missiles of any form, including metal fragments and propellant fragments (burned and unburned) with respect to the test position. Missile type and estimated weight will be recorded on the map.
- (n) Crater dimensions.

- (o) Thermal flux measurements.
- (p) Qualitative analysis of effluent gases produced during the test.
- (q) A chronology of events such as that shown on figure 1.
- (r) A report of test.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This test is satisfactory for determining the potential hazards associated with the propagation of functioning from a donor pyrotechnic end item to receptor pyrotechnic end items in the same container. The potential hazards include fire, missiles, blast (over-pressure) and effluent gases.

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-037



PROPAGATION/TRANSITION TEST B

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in two experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test determines the potential hazards associated with the propagation of functioning from a pyrotechnic end item (donor) in one container to pyrotechnic items (receptors) in an adjacent container.

2. TEST ITEMS

2.1 The test items required for each trial shall consist of pyrotechnic end items packaged in two experimental or standard storage and shipping containers.

3. MATERIAL

- 3.1 Materials required for each trial are as follows:
 - (a) One electrical initiator: M2 squib or Engineers special electric blasting cap, J-2, as required.
 - (b) One blasting machine or equivalent for use with the electrical initiator.
 - (c) Wire (blasting line) for connecting blasting machine to electrical initiator.
 - (d) One still camera.
 - (e) One motion picture camera, 24 frames per second.
 - (f) One motion picture camera, 1,000 frames per second.
 - (g) Instrumentation to record blast overpressure, impulse and thermal flux.
 - (h) Meteorological equipment.
 - (i) Sampling equipment for effluent gases.
 - (j) A quantity of steel banding and banding equipment.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Open one of the shipping containers. Use the electrical initiator to prime the pyrotechnic end item which will be closest to the receptor pyrotechnic end items in the second container. If several items will be equally close to the receptor end items in the second container, prime the most centrally positioned one. Connect the blasting line to the electrical initiator and reclose the container. Band the two containers together with steel straps

in a manner which provides the minimum separation between the primed donor end item and the receptor end items. Place the two containers on a suitable pad for remote controlled ignition. Attach the blasting line to the blasting machine and fire the primed donor pyrotechnic end item from a safe location using approved safety procedures.

4.2 This test should be conducted until propagation to receptor pyrotechnic end items occurs. If no propagation has occurred after five trials, terminate the test.

4.3 Observe the number of receptor pyrotechnic end items in the second container that have functioned as a result of functioning the donor pyrotechnic end item in the first container. During the test, sample any effluent gases for subsequent chemical analysis.

5. DOCUMENTATION

5.1 The documentation of this test shall include the following information:

- (a) Item designation (and Federal Stock No. if available).
- (b) Item lot number.
- (c) Item sublot number.
- (d) Item serial number.
- (e) Detailed quality control report on location and size of defects, if any, in test item.
- (f) Date of manufacture of item.
- (g) Date of test.
- (h) Meteorological data: ambient air temperature, barometric pressure, wind velocity and direction, and relative humidity.
- (i) Schematic drawing of test setup prior to test showing location, type, and distance of instrumentation, cameras, and test item.
- (j) Photographs of the actual test items in the test configuration and photographs of the test position after firing.
- (k) Motion pictures of actual test at 24 and 1,000 frames per second.
- (l) Overpressure in psi and impulse vs distance curve (including calibration test).
- (m) A map locating the radial and angular positions of unexploded items and missiles of any form, including metal fragments and propellant fragments (burned and unburned) with respect to the test position. Missile type and estimate weight will be recorded on the map.

Appendix B

- (n) Crater dimensions.
- (o) Thermal flux measurements.
- (p) Qualitative analysis of effluent gases produced during the test.
- (q) A chronology of events such as that shown on figure 1.
- (r) A report of test.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This test is satisfactory for determining the potential hazards associated with the propagation of functioning from a donor pyrotechnic end item in one container to receptor pyrotechnic end items in an adjacent container. The potential hazards include fire, missiles, blast (overpressure), and effluent gases (chemical).

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-037





EXTERNAL HEAT TEST

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test is conducted on pyrotechnic end items which are packaged in experimental or standard storage and shipping containers. The test determines the potential hazards involved when the containers are enveloped by a hot open fire.

2. TEST ITEMS

2.1 The items to be tested shall consist of pyrotechnic end items packaged in four experimental or standard storage and shipping containers.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 Materials required for the test are as follows:

- (a) A quantity of steel banding and banding equipment.
- (b) A quantity of scrap lumber.
- (c) Approximately 50 gallons of kerosene or diesel fuel.
- (d) Two electric squibs.
- (e) One blasting machine.
- (f) Wire (blasting line) for connecting blasting machine to squibs.
- (g) Four ounces of smokeless powder.
- (h) One still camera.
- (i) One motion picture camera, 24 frames per second.
- (j) One motion picture camera, 1,000 frames per second.
- (k) Instrumentation to record blast overpressure, impulse, and thermal flux.
- (1) Meteorological equipment.
- (m) Sampling equipment for effluent gases.

137

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Using the scrap lumber, build a crib approximately 30 inches high and of sufficient dimensions to hold the stack of shipping containers. Band the four shipping containers together with steel straps in a configuration that best approximates a cube. Place the banded containers on the crib and stack additional scrap lumber around and over the containers to ensure a sustained hot fire. A typical test configuration is shown on figure 1. Pour approximately 50 gallons of kerosene or diesel fuel over the entire crib. At each of two locations, on opposite sides of the crib, place an electric squib in 2 ounches of smokeless powder. Use the blasting line to connect the squibs to a blasting machine. Start the test by firing the squibs from a safe location using approved safety procedures. During the test, sample any effluent gases for subsequent chemical analysis.

5. DOCUMENTATION

5.1 The documentation of this test shall include the following information:

- (a) Item designation (and Federal Stock No. if available).
- (b) Item lot number.
- (c) Item sublot number.
- (d) Item serial number.
- (e) Detailed quality control report on location and size of defects if any, in test item.
- (f) Date of manufacture of item.
- (g) Date of test.
- (h) Meteorological data: ambient air temperature, barometric pressure, wind velocity and direction, and relative humidity.
- (i) Schematic drawing of test setup prior to test showing location, type, and distance of instrumentation, cameras, and test item.
- (j) Photographs of the actual test items in the test configuration and photographs of the test position after firing.
- (k) Motion pictures of actual test at 24 and 1,000 frames per second.
- (1) Overpressure in psi and impulse vs distance curve (including calibration test).
- (m) A map locating the radial and angular positions of unexploded items and missles of any form, including metal fragments and propellant fragments

Appendix B

(burned and unburned) with respect to the test position. Missle type and estimated weight will be recorded on the map.

- (n) Crater dimensions.
- (o) Thermal flux measurements.
- (p) Qualitative analysis of effluent gases produced during the test.
- (q) A chronology of events such as that shown on figure 2.
- (r) A report of test.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This test is satisfactory for determining the potential hazards involved when containers of pyrotechnic end items are enveloped by a hot open fire. The potential hazards include missiles, blast (overpressure), and effluent gases.

- (a) TB 700-2
- (b) GE-MTSD-R-035
- (c) GE-MTSD-R-037








TRANSPORTATION ROUGH HANDLING

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the potential hazards of pyrotechnic end items packaged in shipping containers when the containers experience rough handling associated with transporttion. The rough handling conditions used in the test are vibration, shock and 5-foot drop.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of two shipping containers filled with the pyrotechnic end items to be tested.

3. EQUIPMENT

3.1 The following equipment is required:

- (a) Vibration equipment as specified in MIL-STD-810B.
- (b) L.A.B. package testing machine.
- (c) Equipment for dropping containers from a height of 5 feet onto an armor plate over concrete.
- (d) Equipment for conditioning the containers at -65° F and at 155° F.
- (e) A still camera.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 <u>Vibration</u>. Condition one specimen container at -65° F for 48 hours and condition the other specimen container at 155° F for 48 hours. Maintain the conditioning temperature during the vibration test. Subject each container to high frequency vibration in accordance with method 514, procedure X of MIL-STD-810B. Use vibration test curve AB of figure 514-6 of MIL-STD-810B and time schedule IV of table 514-II of MIL-STD-810B.

4.2 Shock. After completion of the procedure in 4.1, recondition the specimen containers for 24 hours at the same conditioning temperatures used in 4.1 on the table of a L.A.B. package testing machine. Operate the table at a speed that will impact with an acceleration of ± 1 g. Bounch the containers for a total of 2 hours 40 minutes with the longitudinal axes of the containers in the horizontal plane and parallel to the throw of the machine, 40 minutes with the longitudinal axes in the horizontal plane and perpendicular to the throw, and 40 minutes with the longitudinal axes in the vertical plane.

CRASH - SAFETY (40 FOOT DROP)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the potential hazards of pyrotechnic end items packaged in shipping containers in the event of an accidental drop or crash.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of four shipping containers filled with the pyrotechnic end items to be tested.

3. EQUIPMENT

3.1 The following equipment is required:

- (a) Equipment for dropping containers from a height of 40 feet onto a steel plate over concrete.
- (b) A still camera.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Drop each specimen container separately from a height of $40 \pm 1/2$ feet onto a steel plate over concrete. Drop each of the four containers one time so as to impact in the following respective altitudes:

- (a) Corner
- (b) Bottom, edge

(d) End, flat

4.2 Record and photograph any resulting damage or deformation. Report in detail any evidence of flaming, explosion, fragmentation, or functioning giving duration, range, and other pertinent information.

5. EVALUATION

5.1 This test provides a reliable means of evaluating the potential hazards of shipping containers filled with pyrotechnic end items which are subjected to a violent accidental crash or drop.

⁽c) Top, flat

6. **REFERENCES**

(a) Fed. Test Method Std. No. 101a.

BULK DENSITY

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the bulk or apparent density of pyrotechnic mixtures. Bulk density is the weight per unit of outside volume, which may include voids.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of sufficient pyrotechnic mixture to fill a 100-milliliter (ml) graduated cylinder.

3. MATERIALS

3.1 The materials required for this test are as follows:

(a) A 100-ml graduated cylinder.

(b) A balance accurate to 0.01 gram.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Make all weighings to the nearest 0.01 gram. Weigh the empty graduated cylinder. Fill the graduated cylinder with the specimen by gravity feed. Allow the cylinder to stand undisturbed for 10 minutes. Read the fill volume to the nearest milliliter graduation. Weigh the cylinder and specimen.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the (apparent) bulk density in grams per cubic centimeter as follows:

Bulk density =
$$\frac{(A - B)}{C}$$

where:

A = Weight of cylinder and specimen in grams,

B = Weight of empty cylinder in grams, and

C = Volume of specimen in cylinder in milliliters.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 In order to assess potential hazards of pyrotechnic mixtures, it is necessary to know certain physical characteristics of the mixture. Bulk density is one of the important physical characteristics in determining the "critical mass" of a pyrotechnic mixture.

7. REFERENCES

- (a) MIL-STD-286B, method 507.1
- (b) MIL-STD-650, method 201.1

Appendix B

A DA TOTA VALUE AND

COMPATIBILITY (REACTIVITY WITH SURROUNDINGS)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the compatibility of a pyrotechnic mixture with other materials in which it comes in contact throughout its life cycle.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of 5 grams (g) of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested and 5 g of the contact material to be tested. The pyrotechnic mixture specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing. If the contact material is metal, it shall be tested as fine milled chips or filings. If the contact material is film, cloth, or paper, it shall be cut into 1/8-inch squares. Other solid contact materials shall be milled to a fineness of approximately 12 mesh.

3. APPARATUS

3.1 The test apparatus shall consist of the following:

- (a) Constant temperature bath capable of maintaining a temperature of $100^{\circ} + 1^{\circ}$ C.
- (b) Compatibility apparatus as shown on figure 1.
- (c) Vacuum pump.

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Standardize the compatibility apparatus as follows: Determine the volume of the heating tube by filling it with mercury from a buret until the mercury reaches the level at which it will contact the ground glass joint of the capillary tube. Determine the unit capacity of the capillary by placing exactly 10 g of mercury in its cup, and manipulating the tube so that all the mercury passes into the long (85-centimeter) section of the capillary. Be sure that the mercury remains as a continuous column. Measure the length of the mercury column at three positions in the long section of the capillary, and average the three measurements. Calculate the unit capacity of the capillary as follows:

Unit capacity of capillary, ml per mm = $\frac{W}{13.59L}$

where: W = Weight of mercury in the column in grams and L = Average length of mercury column in millimeters. 4.2 Perform three determinations. In the first determination, place 2.5 g of the pyrotechnic mixture specimen in the heating tube. In the second determination, place 2.5 g of the contact material in the heating tube. In the third determination, place 2.5 g of the pyrotechnic mixture specimen and 2.5 g of the contact material in the heating tube.

4.3 Perform each determination as follows: Coat the ground glass joint of the capillary tube with a light film of petroleum jelly, and make an airtight connection between the heating tube and the capillary by pressing the tube up against the capillary with a twisting motion. Mount the apparatus on a rack so that the long section of the capillary is nearly vertical, and the cup at the bottom rests on a solid support. Fill the cup with 7.0 millimeters (ml) of mercury and connect a vacuum line to the mouth of the cup. Evacuate the capillary to an absolute pressure of approximately 5 millimeters (mm) of mercury. (Evacuation will be facilitated by tilting the apparatus until the capillary opening in the bottom of the cup is free of mercury.) When the pressure has been reduced to 5 mm of mercury, remove the vacuum line and allow the mercury to enter the capillary. Record the following data:

- (a) Length of capillary from heating tube joint to surface of mercury pool in cup (C_1) .
- (b) Height of mercury column above the surface of the mercury pool (H_1) .
- (c) Barometric pressure in millimeters of mercury (P₁).
- (d) Temperature of room in degrees Centigrade (t_1) .

4.4 Immerse the heating tube in the constant temperature bath, being careful not to loosen the connection between the heating tube and the capillary. Heat the tube at a temperature of $100^{\circ} \pm 1^{\circ}$ C for 40 hours. Remove the tube from the constant temperature bath and allow it to cool to room temperature. Record the following data:

- (a) Length of capillary from heating tube joint to the surface of the mercury pool in the cup (c).
- (b) Height of mercury column above the surface of the mercury pool (H).
- (c) Barometric pressure in millimeters of mercury (P).
- (d) Temperature of the room in degrees Centigrade (t).

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the volume of gas (at standard temperature and pressure) liberated during the test as follows:

Volume of gas, ml = (A + B)(C - H)
$$\frac{273 (P - H)}{760(273 + t)}$$
 (A + B)(C₁ - H₁) $\frac{273 (P_1 - H_1)}{760 (273 + t_1)}$

Appendix B

where:

- Volume of heating tube (less 5 ml allowance for specimen) in A = milliliters,
- B = Unit capacity of capillary, milliliters per millimeter calculated in 4.1,
- C = Length of capillary from heating tube joint to top of mercury column at end of test in millimeters.
- Length of capillary from heating tube joint to top of mercury column at $C_1 =$ beginning of test in millimeters,
- H =Height of mercury column above the surface of the mercury pool at end of test in millimeters.
- H₁ = Height of mercury column above the surface of the mercury pool at beginning of test in millimeters,
- P = Atmospheric pressure at end of test in millimeters of mercury.
- $P_1 = t_1 = t_1$ Atmospheric pressure at beginning of test in millimeters of mercury,
- Room temperature, °C, at end of test, and
- $t_{1} =$ Room temperature, °C, at beginning of test.

5.2 Calculate the amount of gas produced by the mixture of contact material and pyrotechnic specimen in excess of the amount of gas evolved by the materials separately as follows:

Gas due to reactivity, milliliters = A - (B + C)

where:

- A =Milliliters of gas evolved by mixture of contact material and pyrotechnic specimen in the third determination,
- B = Milliliters of gas evolved by the pyrotechnic specimen in the first determination, and
- C = Milliliters of gas evolved by the contact material in the second determination.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 Compatibility, which is the ability of a pyrotechnic mixture to remain unaffected when in contact with other material, is useful in evaluating the potential hazards of a pyrotechnic mixture due to its reaction upon contact with other materials.

7. REFERENCES

- (a) MIL-STD-650, method 504.1
- (b) MIL-STD-1234, method 504.1
- AMCP 760-177 Engineering Design Handbook, Properties of Explosives (C) of Military Interest, Part I, January, 1971.
- (d) AMCP 760-186 - Engineering Design Handbook, Military Pyrotechnic Series, Part Two - Safety, Procedures, and Glossary, October, 1963.





Appendix B

HYGROSCOPICITY

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the amount of moisture absorbed by pyrotechnic mixtures when they are subjected to a relative humidity of 90 percent.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of 14 to 15 grams of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

- 3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:
 - (a) A glass weighing bottle approximately 70 millimeters (mm) in diameter and 33 mm high with ground glass cover.
 - (b) A desiccator containing a solution of 18.6 ± 0.5 percent by weight sulfuric acid in water for producing a 90-percent relative humidity at 30° C.
 - (c) A desiccator containing an indicating desiccant.
 - (d) An oven capable of maintaining a constant temperature of $30^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C.
 - (e) A balance accurate to 0.2 milligram (mg).

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Make all weighings to the nearest 0.2 mg. Weigh the weighing bottle and cover. Place the specimen in the weighing bottle, cover, and reweigh. Place the weighing bottle and contents in the desiccator containing the sulfuric acid solution and remove the bottle cover. Cover the desiccator and place it in an oven which is maintained at a constant temperature of $30^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C. Remove the weighing bottle from the oven after 2 days, cover, cool to room temperature in a desiccator containing an indicating desiccant, and weigh. Place the weighing bottle back in the desiccator containing the sulfuric acid solution in the oven. Reweigh the bottle and contents at 2-day intervals until the change in weight between successive weighings is no more than 0.2 mg.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the percent by weight of hygroscopic moisture absorbed by the specimen as follows:

Appendix B

Percent hygroscopic moisture absorbed = $\frac{100 (A - B)}{(B - C)}$

where:

A = Final weight of covered weighing bottle and contents,
B = Initial weight of covered weighing bottle and contents, and

C = Weight of empty covered weighing bottle.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 This test gives some indication of a pyrotechnic mixture's tendency to absorb atmospheric moisture. This information can be used as a guide in the processing, storing, and handling of the pyrotechnic mixture up to the time of testing for potential hazards. Excessive moisture absorption by a pyrotechnic mixture prior to testing for potential hazards may produce misleading evaluations.

7. REFERENCES

- (a) MIL-STD-286B, method 503.1.3
- (b) MIL-STD-650, method 208.1
- (c) Henkin, H., "Methods of Stability Testing", ORSD 3401, 22 March 1944.
- (d) Tomlinson, W. R. and Sheffeld, O. E., "Properties of Explosives of Military Interest," Picatinny Arsenal Technical Report 1740 (Revision 1), April, 1958.
- (e) AMCP 706-177
- (f) AMCP 706-186

MOISTURE (DESICCATION METHOD)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the moisture content of pyrotechnic mixtures which do not contain volatile ingredients. The moisture content determined is based on the loss of weight of the pyrotechnic mixture in a desiccated atmosphere.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of approximately 10 grams of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

- 3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:
 - (a) A glass weighing bottle approximately 70 millimeters (mm) in diameter and 33 mm high with ground glass cover.
 - (b) A desiccator approximately 250 mm in diameter, or one of equivalent volume, which has been filled nearly to the plate with a suitable desiccant such as calcium chloride or anhydrous calcium sulfate.
 - (c) A balance accurate to 0.2 milligram (mg).

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Make all weighings to the nearest 0.2 mg. Weigh the weighing bottle and cover. Place the specimen in the weighing bottle, cover, and weigh. Place the weighing bottle and contents in the desiccator and remove the bottle cover. Cover the desiccator and maintain at a temperature of $25^{\circ} \pm 5^{\circ}$ C. Weigh the covered bottle and contents at 24-hour intervals until the loss in weight between successive weighings is no more than 1 mg.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the percent by weight moisture in the specimen as follows:

Percent moisture =
$$\frac{100 (A - B)}{A - C}$$

where:	Α	=	Weight	of	covered	bottle	and	specimen	befo	ore	desico	cation	9
	-								01			1.0	

B = Weight of covered bottle and specimen after desiccation, and

C = Weight of empty covered weighing bottle.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 Moisture content determination of pyrotechnic mixtures is required so that subsequent evaluations of potential hazards of the pyrotechnic mixtures can be correlated to the amount of moisture in the specimen.

7. REFERENCES

- (a) MIL-STD-286B, method 101.3.2
- (b) MIL-STD-650, method 101.2
- (c) MIL-STD-1234, method 101.1.1

MOISTURE AND VOLATILES (VACUUM OVEN METHOD)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines the moisture and volatile matter content of pyrotechnic mixtures. The determination is based on the loss of weight of the pyrotechnic mixture in an oven under vacuum.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of approximately 10 grams of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen prior to testing.

3. MATERIALS

- 3.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:
 - (a) A glass weighing bottle approximately 70 millimeters (mm) in diameter and 33 mm high with ground glass cover.
 - (b) A desiccator containing a suitable desiccant such as calcium chloride or anhydrous calcium sulfate.
 - (c) A vacuum oven.
 - (d) A balance accurate to 0.2 milligram (mg).

4. PROCEDURE

4.1 Make all weighings to the nearest 0.2 mg. Weigh the weighing bottle and cover. Place the specimen in the weighing bottle, cover, and weigh. Place the weighing bottle and contents in the vacuum oven, remove the bottle cover, and heat the specimen for 6 hours at $55^{\circ} \pm 2^{\circ}$ C under an absolute pressure of 80 ± 10 mm of mercury. Cool the bottle and specimen to room temperature in the desiccator. Cover and reweigh.

5. CALCULATIONS

5.1 Calculate the percent by weight moisture and volatiles in the specimen as follows:

Percent moisture and volatiles = $\frac{100 (A - B)}{(A - C)}$

where:

- A = Weight of covered bottle and specimen before heating,
- B = Weight of covered bottle and specimen after heating, and
- C = Weight of empty covered weighing bottle.

6. EVALUATION

6.1 A moisture and volatiles content determination of pyrotechnic mixtures is required so that subsequent evaluations of potential hazards of the pyrotechnic mixtures can be correlated to the amount of moisture and volatiles in the specimen.

7. REFERENCES

(a) MIL-STD-286B, Method 101.1.2

(b) MIL-STD-1234, Method 102.2.1

MOISTURE AND TOTAL VOLATILES (GAS CHROMATOGRAPHIC METHOD)

1. SCOPE

1.1 This test determines water, ethyl alcohol, and diethyl ether content of pyrotechnic mixtures. It is based on the extraction of the solvents from the pyrotechnic mixture with a solution of predried methyl ethyl ketone and secondary butyl alcohol.

2. SPECIMEN

2.1 The specimen shall consist of approximately 10 grams (g) of the pyrotechnic mixture to be tested. The specimen shall be prepared by sieving it through a 50-mesh screen while keeping exposure to the atmosphere to a minimum in order to reduce loss of volatiles or absorption of water.

3. APPARATUS

3.1 The test apparatus shall consist of a gas chromatograph equipped with a thermal conductivity detector and a 1-millivolt recorder and integrator. The chromatographic column shall be made of 1/4-inch outside diameter stainless steel tubing and shall have a length of 8 feet. The column shall be packed with 80 to 100 mesh "Porapak Q."

4. MATERIAL

4.1 Materials required for this test are as follows:

- (a) Erlenmeyer flasks, 125-milliliter (ml), with rubber stoppers.
- (b) Syringe, 50-microliter.
- (c) Flow meter, 10-cubic centimeter (cc).
- (d) Serum bottles, 30-ml capacity, with rubber stoppers.
- (e) Volumetric pipets, 25-ml and 50-ml.
- (f) Shaker, horizontal (for flasks).
- (g) Acetone, reagent grade.
- (h) Methyl ethyl ketone, certified reagent grade (Fisher Scientific Co. No. M-209 or equal), 1 gallon.
- (i) Sec-butyl alcohol, reagent grade (Eastman Organic Chemicals No. 943 or equal), 1 gallon.

- (j) Molecular sieves, type 4A, 1/16-inch pellets.
- (k) Ethyl alcohol, absolute, dried.
- (1) Water, distilled.
- (m) Diethyl ether, reagent grade, dried.
- (n) Helium, commercial grade.
- (o) Balance accurate to 0.2 milligram (mg).

5. PROCEDURE

5.1 Preparation of extraction solution. Dry the extraction solvents by adding 1-inch layers of molecular sieves directly to the gallon containers of methyl ethyl ketone and secbutyl alcohol 2 days prior to mixing. Prepare a solution of 1 part by volume dry methyl ethyl ketone to 3 parts by volume dry sec-butyl alcohol. Add a 1-inch layer of molecular sieves to the container of the mixed solvents.

5.2 <u>Preparation of standard</u>. Pipet 30 ml of the dry, mixed solvents into a 30-ml serum bottle, stopper, and weigh to the nearest 0.2 mg. Using a suitable syringe, inject through the rubber stopper approximately 0.10 ml each of distilled water, dry ethyl alcohol, and diethyl ether. Reweigh the bottle to the nearest 0.2 mg after each injection to determine the weight of each component added. Be careful not to get any of the solvents in the stopper during injection. Record the weight of each component.

5.3 Extraction. Add approximately 10 g of specimen, weighed to the nearest 0.2 mg, to a 125-ml Erlenmeyrer flask and stopper immediately. Pipet 50 ml of the extracting solvent solution prepared in 5.1 into the flask and immediately stopper the flask. Place the flask on the horizontal shaker at low speed and ambient conditions to extract any solvents from the specimen. Extract for at least 2 hours. Remove the flask from the shaker and allow 15 minutes for most of the solids to settle.

5.4 <u>Chromatography</u>. Check the instrument settings and make any necessary adjustments to obtain the following conditions:

- (a) Injection port temperature of 160° C.
- (b) Oven temperature of 150°C.
- (c) Detector temperature of 180° C.
- (d) Bridge current of 200 milliamperes.
- (e) Helium flow rate of 60 cc per minute.
- (f) Helium inlet pressure of 50 psig.

Appendix B

Without disturbing the settled solids, sample 20 microliters (free of bubbles) of the liquid portion of the sample with a 50-microliter syringe that has been cleaned with acetone and dried with forced air. Wipe the tip of the syringe with a tissue and then draw up 1.0 microliter of air. Immediately inject the sample into the gas chromatograph and allow the component peaks to evolve at their respective attenuations. See figure 1. The sequence of separation of the components will be air, water, ethyl alcohol, impurity from methyl ethyl ketone (only seen when chromatograph is set at high sensitivity), diethyl ether, and extraction solvent mixture. Depending upon specimen concentration, it may be necessary to change the attenuation in order to keep the component peaks on the chart. It is not necessary to keep the methyl ethyl ketone - sec-butyl alcohol peak on the chart. The attenuation should never be changed during the evolving of a peak; and if possible, it is desirable to preattenuate so that a peak between 30 to 95 percent of the chart can be obtained. At times it may be necessary to rezero the recorder and integrater after switching attenuator settings or after evolution of a component. True zero is when the integrator runs in a straight line. Record on the chart the specimen identification, the attenuation, and the integrator reading of each component peak.

5.5 Standard and water correction tests. Repeat the procedure in 5.4 using the standard prepared in 5.2. Repeat the procedure in 5.4 using the methyl ethyl ketone – sec-butyl alcohol solution at an attenuation of 1X to obtain the water correction (if necessary).

6. CALCULATIONS

1

6.1 Calculate the percent by weight alcohol, ether, water, and total volatiles as follows:

Percent alcohol =
$$\frac{(A)(B)(W_1)(100)(E)}{(C)(D)(W_2)}$$

Percent ether = $\frac{(A)(B)(W_1)(100)(E)}{(C)(D)(W_2)}$

Percent ether	=	$(AB - FG) (W_1)(100)(E)$			
		$(CD - FG) (W_2)$			

Percent total volatiles = Percent alcohol + Percent ether + Percent water

Where:	A =	Attenuator setting for specimen extract
	B =	Area of peak for specimen extract
	C =	Attenuator setting for standard
	D =	Area of peak for standard
	W_1=	Grams of component per 25 ml of standard
	$W_2^1 =$	Specimen weight

- E = Ratio of solvent between specimen and standard (equals 2 when 50 ml is used for specimen and 25 ml is used for standard)
- F = Attenuator setting for water in the extraction solvent
- G = Area of peak for water in the extraction solvent.

7. EVALUATION

7.1 Moisture and volatile matter content determination of pyrotechnic mixtures is required so that subsequent evaluations of potential hazards of the pyrotechnic mixtures can be correlated to the amount of moisture and volatiles in the specimen.

8. REFERENCES

(a) MIL-STD-286B, method T103.5



Appendix B

DISTRIBUTION LIST

Addressee	No. of Copies
Commander US Army Armament Command ATTN: Safety Office Rock Island Arsenal Rock Island, IL 61201	2
Commander Picatinny Arsenal ATTN: Safety Office Dover, NJ 07801	2
Commander Pine Bluff Arsenal ATTN: Safety Office Pine Bluff, AR 71601	1
Commander Frankford Arsenal ATTN: Safety Office Bridge and Tacony Streets Philadelphia, PA 19137	1
Commander Rocky Mountain Arsenal ATTN: Safety Office Denver, CO 80240	1
Director National Aeronautics and Space Administration ATTN: Safety Office Washington, DC 20546	1
Director NASA National Space Technology Laboratories ATTN: Safety Office Bay St. Louis, MS 39520	1
Commander Edgewood Arsenal ATTN: SAREA-MT-C SAREA-MT-TL SAREA-SA SAREA-TS-L SAREA-TS-R	1 4 2 5 1

Commander **US Army Armament Command** ATTN: AMSAR-MT (CPT Lewis) Rock Island Arsenal Rock Island, IL 61201 Chairman Department of Defense Explosives Safety Board Forrestal Building, GB-270 Washington, DC 20314 Commander US Army Materiel Command **ATTN: Safety Office** AMCSA-BC (COL Aaron) 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22333 Office of the Project Manager for Munition Production Base Modernization and Expansion ATTN: AMCPM-PBM-E (Mr. Dybacki) **USA** Materiel Command Dover, NJ 07801 Director US Army Ballistics Research Laboratories ATTN: Safety Office Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD 21005 Director Defense Research & Engineering Pentagon Washington, DC 20310 Record Copy Commander Aberdeen Proving Ground ATTN: STEAP-AD-R/RHA APG-Edgewood Area, Bldg E5179 Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD 21010 Administrator **Defense Documentation Center** ATTN: Accessions Division **Cameron Station** Alexandria, VA 22314 Director of Procurement

ATTN: Contracting Officer's File Aberdeen Proving Ground, MD 21010

1

1

2

1

1

1

2

1

2

1

